
INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF
GARDEN CITY, NEW YORK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended May 31,2017



INCORPORATED
VILLAGE

OF
GARDEN CITY, NEW YORK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MAY 31 ,2017



INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY, NEW YORK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MAY 31 , 2017

Prepared by:

Finance Department
lrene Woo, CPA, Treasurer



INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MAY 31 ,2017
TABLE OF CONTENTS

lndependent Auditors' Report.

Required Supplementary lnformation:

Management's Discussion and Analysis ....

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds.

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to
the Statement of Net Position..

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes ln Fund
Balances - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement

of Activities .......

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds..

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, a
Net Position - Proprietary Funds.

nd Changes ln

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds....

Statement of Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Fund..

Notes to Financial Statements...

Required Supplementary lnformation Other Than Management's Discussion and
Analysis:

1-2

4- 21

25

26-27

33

34-35

36

37-72

74-79

80

81

82

28

29

30

31

32

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fu
Budget and Actual - General Fund ........

nd Balance -

Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB).

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Schedule of Pension Contributions......



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AU DITORS' REPORT

Mayor and Board of Trustees
lncorporated Village of Garden City
Garden City, New York

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the

lncorporated Village of Garden City, New York, (the "Village") as of and for the year ended May 31,

2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village's

basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Llnited States of

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Village's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not.for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such oþinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

BEYOND THE NUMBERS...

ALBRECHT, VIGGIANO. ZURECK & COMPANY P.C.

245 PARK AVENUE, 39TH FLOOR 25 SUFFOLK COURT
NEW YORK, NY 101ó7 HAUPPAUGE, NY 1 1788-3715

T:212.792.4075 T: 631.434.9500 F: ó31 .434.9518

-
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Opinions

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the businesstype activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village as of May 31 , 2017, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Req u i red S u p pl e me ntary I nform ation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, and the required supplementary information other than the
management's discussion and analysis as listed on the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Hauppauge, NewYork
November 13,2017
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Management's Discussion and Analysis
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

As management of the lncorporated Village of Garden City, New York (the "Village"), we offer
readers of the financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for
the year ended May 31 ,2017. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the Village's financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The combined assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Village exceeded its liabilities
and deferred inflows by $20,094,689 (net position) at May 31,2017.

The Village's total combined net position decreased by $6,017,165 of which $6,833,130 was
related to a decrease in the governmental activities net position and $815,965 was related to
an increase in the business-type activities net position.

As of May 31 , 2017, the Village's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $22,259,809. Of this amount, $952,966 is not in spendable form or is required to
remain intact. The remaining $et,306,843 or approximately 96% of total fund balances is in
spendable form with various levels of spending constraint: restricted, assigned, or
unassigned making them available for spending at the Village's discretion (see Note 2.8).

At year end, the Village's total fund balance for the General Fund was $17,393,674, an
increase of $1,926,036 from the prior year. The assigned and unassigned fund balance for
the General Fund was $13,846,900.

The Village's total bonded debt was $29,540,000 (exclusive of premiums), of which
$19,400,380 relates to governmental activities and $10,139,620 relates to business-type
activities. There was an increase in bonded debt in the amount of $6,699,465, a result of
issuance of $9,235,000 in general obligation bonds, offset by principal payments made in the
current year of $2,535,535.

lntentionally Left Blank
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Village's basic financial
statements. The Village's basic financial statements comprise of the following components: 1)

government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to basic financial
statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

COMPONENTS OF
THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Required
Supplementary

lnformation

Summary Detail

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the Village's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The intent of the
government-wide financial statements is to give the reader a long-term view of the Village's financial
condition.

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on all of the Village's assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as
net position. This combines and consolidates the Village's current financial resources with capital
assets and long-term obligations. The purpose of this statement is to give the reader an
understanding of the Village's total net worth. Over time, increases or decreases in the Village's net
position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to
consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the Village's property tax base and
the condition of the Village's buildings, roads, drainage and other assets to assess the overall health
of the Village.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Village's net position changed
during the most recent year. Revenues and expenses are reported by activity to give the reader an
understanding of how each of the Village's activities is being supported. All changes in net position
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future periods. This method is known as the accrual basis
of accounting and is different from the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the Village's
fund f inancial statements.

-5-
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Government-wide Financial Statements (continued)

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business{ype activities).

The Village's government-wide financial statements include both the governmental and business-
type activities of the Village itself (known as the primary government) and of its legally separate
nonmajor component unit for which the Village is financially accountable. Financial information for
the component unit has been blended with that of the primary government.

Governmental Activities - The Village's basic services are reported here, including: general
government support; public safety; transportation; economic assistance and opportunity; culture and
recreation and home and community services. Property taxes, mortgage taxes, franchise fees, fines,
and state and federal grants finance these activities. The Village also charges fees to customers to
help it cover the cost of certain services it provides. ln addition, the activities of the Garden City
Public Library, although a legally separate entity, are included in the governmental activities since
the Library functions for all practical purposes as a department of the Village.

Business-Type Activities - The Village charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The Village's water, pool and indoor tennis facilities are reported
here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements focus on current available resources and are organized and operated
on the basis of funds, each of which is defined as an accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts established for the purpose of carrying on specific or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with special regulations, restriction or limitations. The Village, like other governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

The Village's activities are reported in governmentalfunds. Governmentalfunds are used to account
for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund
financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government's near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term effect of the Village's near term financial
decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and governmental fund Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Governmental Funds (continued)

The Village maintains two individual major governmental funds. lnformation is presented separately
in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General and Capital Project Funds. The
Library Fund (blended component unit) is considered a nonmajor governmental fund, and is
presented as such in the governmentalfund financial statements.

The Village adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule for the General Fund can be found in the section labeled "Required Supplementary
lnformation Other Than Management's Discussion and Analysis."

The governmental fund financial statements can be found in the "Basic Financial Statements"
section of this report.

Proprietarv Funds

The Village maintains two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
Village uses enterprise funds to account for its Water, Pool and Tennis Funds. The lnternal Service
Fund is used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Village's various functions. The
Village uses its lnternal Service Fund to account for risk management activities. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business{ype activities, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, but are included
in a single column in the proprietary fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
Water, Pool, Tennis and lnternal Service Funds since all are considered to be major funds of the
Village. The proprietary fund financial statements can be found in the "Basic Financial Statements"
section of this report.

Fiduciarv Funds

All of the Village's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Assets and
Liabilities. We exclude these activities from the Village's other financial statements because the
Village cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The Village is responsible for ensuring that
the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. The fiduciary fund financial
statement can be found in the "Basic Financial Statements" section of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be
found following the basic financial statements.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Other lnformation

ln addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
required supplementary information concerning the Village following the notes to the financial
statements.

GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. ln the case of the Village, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows by $20,094,689 at the close of the most recent year.

Our analysis below focuses on the net position and changes in net position of the Village as a whole.

Condenæd Statement of Net Podtion
as of May 31,2017 and 2016

Go\€mmental Businesslype Tolal

Activities Activities Primary Go\emment

2017 201 6 2017 2016 2017 2016

Assets

Current and other assets

Capital assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Current and other liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources

Net Position .

Net in\êstment in

capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

91,709,630 83,668,410 3s,852,470 33,665,179 127,s62j00 117,333,589

8,436,465 16,306,693 399,097 88s,927 8,835,562 17,192,620

2,849,1 36 3,257,429

11,737,028

98,660,132 91,220,233 14,994,457 114,549,952 106,214,690

1,638,449 2,074,226 114,572 1 25,439 1,753,021 2,1 99,665

(27.374.685)

Total Net Position $ (152,486) $ 6,680,644 ç 20,247,175 $ 19,431,210 $ 20,094,689 $ 26,111,854

*Certain amounts in the 2016 Net Position classifications presented above have been reclassified to conform
to the current year presentation.

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Village's governmental activities, as of
May 31 ,2017, were $100,146,095, an increase of $170,992. Total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources as of May 31,2017 were $100,298,581, an increase of $7,004,122. This resulted in a net
position deficit balance of $152,486 for 2017, a decrease of $6,833,130.

The deficit balance of unrestricted net position does not necessarily indicate fiscal stress. The deficit
balance in unrestricted net position arose primarily due to long-term liabilities which include other
postemployment benefits, compensated absences, claims and judgments, tax certiorari costs and
the proportionate share of the net pension liability that will be funded through future budgetary
appropriations or charges for services when they become payable in future periods.

The Village's combined net position was again impacted in the current year and will continue to be
impacted in subsequent years due to the ongoing recognition of other postemployment benefits
(OPEB). The unfunded liability for other postemployment benefits related to the primary government
increased by $5,677,790 in the current year, bringing the unfunded liability at year end to
$52,019,226. Additional information on other postemployment benefits can be found in Note 3.G to
the financial statements.

-8-

$ 32,584,46s $

59,1 25,1 6s

26,314,762 $
57,353,648

16,464,787 $

1 9,387,683

15,508,689 $

1 8,1 56,490

49,049,252 $

78,512,848

41,823,451

75,51 0,138

1 0,1 58,683

88,s01,449

9,473,499

81,746,734 1 3,040,684

1 5,889,820

13,007,819

101,542,133

12,730,928

93,483,762

38,501 ,1 80

582,414
(39,236,080)

41,568,955

129,944

(35,01 8,255)

8,385,780

11,861,395

9,389,444

1 0,041 ,766

46,886,960

582,414

50,958,399

129,944

(24,976,489)



INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)

Of the Village's governmental activities net position balance, $38,501,180 was the net investment in
capital assets, while $70,643 was restricted by grantors for a specific purpose, $466,560 was
restricted for debt service payments and $45,211 was restricted for public safety, leaving a deficit of
$39,236,080 in the unrestricted net position category.

The largest portion of the governmental activities net position, $38,501,180, reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.9., land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment,
and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The
Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the Village's investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves will not be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Village's business-type activities, as of
May 31 ,2017, were $36,251,567, an increase of $1 ,700,461. Total liabilities and deferred inflows as
of May 31,2017 were $16,004,392, an increase of $884,496. This resulted in a net position balance
of $20,247,175tor 2017, an increase of $815,965.

Of the Village's business-type activities net position balance, $8,385,780 was the net investment in
capital assets, leaving a balance of $11,861,395 in the unrestricted net position category. The Pool
Fund reported a negative net investment in capital assets. This is a result of the Village's assets
depreciating at a faster rate than the corresponding debt is being amortized (i.e. paid down), which
is a result of the Village's debt being issued at a later date compared to the date the asset is placed
into service.

lntentionally Left Blank
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¡NCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)

Our analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and business-type
activities.

Changes in Net Podtion
For the years ended May 31,2017 and 2016

Gorærnmental

Activities
Bus¡ness-type

Activities

Total

Primary Go\,ernment

2017 2016. 2017 201 6 2017 2016 -

Program Rerenues

Charges for services

Operat¡ng grants

and contributions

Capital grants

and contributions

Total Program Rerenues

General Rerenues

Real property taxes
Other real property tax items

Non-property tax ¡lems

Eamings on in\estments
Gain on sale of capital assets
Grânts - unrestricted

Legal settlement
Other

Total General Rerænues

Total Re\€nues

Program Expenses

General goremment support

Public safety
Transportation

Economic assislance
and opportunity

Culture and recreation

Home and

community senices
lnterest on debt

Pool

Tennis

Water

Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning
of Year, as reported

Cumulati\ê effect of change
in accounting principle -.

Net Posit¡on at Beginning
of Year, as restated

$ 5,594,642 $

41,427

1 ,303, 1 94

5,893,799 $

780,858

697,397

8,166,021 $ 8,203,070 $ 13,760,663 $

41,427

1 ,303,1 94

14,096,869

780,858

697,397

6,939,263 7,372,0U 8,1 66,021 8,203,070 15,105,284 15,575,124

49,024,471

823,1 51

975,037

62,670
52,741

1,099,600

183,476

48,965,378

1 ,020,619
1 ,016,578

44,100

29,252

943,273

314,007

17.264 17.730

1 0,000,000

3,561

49,024,471

823,1 51

975,037

79,9U
52,741

1,099,600

-0-

183,476

48,965,378

1 ,020,619
1,016,578

61,830

29,252

943,273

10,000,000

31 7,568

52,221,146 52,333,207 17 264 10,021,291 52,238,410 62,354,498

59,160,409 59,705,261 8,183,285 18,224,361 67,343,694 77,929,622

1 5,61 3,162

24,839,092

4,988,391

32,M3
11,942,628

I,062,475
437.448

13,215,258

23,859,451

4,988,683

32,470
12.162.562

8,1 03,258

288,125

1 5,61 3,162

24,839,092

4,988,391

32,443
11,942,628

8,062,475

437,U8
1,353,739

361,942

5,729,139

13,215,258

23,859,451

4,988,683

32,470

12,162,562

8,1 03,258

288,125

1,305,295

389,339

5,243,498

1,353,739

361,942

5,729,139

1,305,295

389,339

5,243,498

Total Program Expenses 65,916,039

Change in Net Pos¡tion

before Transfers (6,755,630)

Transfers in (out) (77,500)

62,649,807 7,444,820 6,938,132 73,360,859 69,587,939

(2,944,546)

(40,000)

738,465

77,500

11,286.229

40,000

(6,01 7,1 6s) 8,341,683

-0-

(6,833,130) (2,e84,546) 815,965 11,326,229 (6,017,165) 8,341,683

6,680,644 10,083,700

(418,510)

19,431,210 8,224,616

(1 1 9,635)

26,111 ,854 18,308,316

(538,1 45)

6,680,644 9,665,1 90 19,431,210

$ 20,247j75

8,104,981 26,111,854 17,770,171

NetPosit¡onatEndofYear $ (152,486) $ 6,680,644 $ 19,431,210 $ 20,094,689 $ 26,111,854

*Certain amounts in the 2016 Changes in Net Position presented above have been reclassified to conform to
the current year presentation.
** The Village's f inancial statements presented herein are for the year ended May 31 , 2016 and the cumulative
effect of applying GASB Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Reporting for Pensions" and GASB Statement
No. 71 , "Pension Transition Guidance for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date"is shown
as an adjustment to the beginning net position of fiscal year 2016.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)

During the year ended May 31 , 2017, government-wide revenues decreased from the prior year by

$10,585,928 while government-wide expenses increased from the prior year by $3,772,920.

The key elements of the change in government-wide revenues as compared to the prior year are as
follows:

a

a

o

Decrease in the charges for services related to governmental activities of $336,206, primarily
due to lower amounts recognized for reductions in estimated general liability claims based on
an actuarial calculation ($712,165) offset by the increase in the culture and recreation fees
($ZOg,gl8) for the rentalof Village owned fields and participation of activities and an increase
public works service charges ($25e,++Z¡ mostly related to sidewalk repair.

Decrease in operating grants and contributions of $739,431 primarily due to the recognition
of the state portion of disaster assistance in the prior year in the amount of $756,998, related
to cleanup costs associated with Hurricane Sandy. The Village did not receive this
assistance in the current year.

lncrease in capital grants and contributions, related to governmental activities of $605,797,
due to a one time grant received to reimburse the Village for a recycling truck purchased in a
previous year ($242,000), the recognition of two grants ($3eS,185) from the NYS Dormitory
Authority to provide financial assistance for the senior recreation center capital project and
additional proceeds from the CHIPS and PAVE NY grants ($gO,l12) in the current year.

. Decrease in a legal settlement recognized in the Water Fund in the amount of $10,000,000 in
the prior year.

The key elements of the change in government-wide expenses as compared to the prior year are as
follows:

lncrease in general government support expenses of $2,397,904, primarily a result of the
Village recognizing additional amounts in the current year related to various judgements and
claims, including tax certiorari and general liability cases.

lncrease in public safety expenses of $979,641 primarily due to an overall increase in
salaries ($104,383), higher health insurance costs and retirement system contributions
($383,533), depreciation charges ($192,509) and compensated absences ($t04,588).

lncrease in the Water Fund expenses of $485,641, due to an increase in maintenance of
equipment ($2ZS,ZOI¡ and electricity costs ($ZZ,ggl), additional costs for administrative
salaries ($152,+++¡ and an increase in debt service interest payments ($St ,SSS¡.

a

a

a
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INCORPORATED V¡LLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)

The following illustrates the total cost of services, program revenues by function and the net cost of
services for the Village's governmental activities.

Net Expense of Services
Governmental Act¡v¡t¡es
For Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016

Total Expense of Senices Program Re\ênues Net Expense of Services

2017 2016 2017 2016. 2017 2016

General gorernment support
Public salety
Transportation
Economic assistance and opportunity
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
lnterest on debt

$ 15,613,162
24,839,092

4,988,391
32,443

11,942,628
8,062,475

437,848

$ 13,215,258
23,859,451

4,988,683
32,470

12,162,562
8,1 03,258

288,125

$ 62,649,807

566,6¿13 $
3,257,068
1,458,784

1,156,667
500,1 01

1,000,1s9 $
3,380,139
1,216,514

684,299
1,090,943

(1s,046,519) $
(21,582,024).

(3,529,607)
(32,M3)

(10,785,961 )
(7,562,374).

(1 2,21 s,099)
(20,479,312)
(3,772,169)

(32,47o)
(11,478,263)'
(7,012,315l.

$

$ 65,916,039 $ 6,939,263 $ 7,372,054
(437,848) (288,125)

_$__É9ÉZ9Z9i _$__e9,2??, ?59i

*Certain amounts in the 2016 Program Revenues presented above have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation. This resulted ¡n an addit¡onal amount of program revenues lor 2016 in the amount of $1,470,976.

The cost of the governmental activities in the current fiscal year was $65,916,039. The net cost of
these services after being subsidized by program revenues of $6,939,263 was $58,979,776.

Expenses and Program Revenues
Governmental Activities

I Expenses r Program Revenues
$25,000,000

$22,500,000

$20,000,000

$17,500,000

$15,000,000

$12,500,m0

$10,000,æ0

$7,500,0m

$5,000,0æ

$2,s00,0æ

${-

community
services

Home and lnterest m debtPublicsafety Transportation Economic
assistance ând

oppoftunity

Culture and
recreation

General
government

support
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)

The following illustrates the total cost of services, program revenues by fund and the net cost of
services for the Village's business-type activities.

Net (Expense) Revenue of Services *

BudnessType Activities
For Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016

Total of Services Proqram Be\ênues Net (Expense) Re\enue of Services

2017 2016 2017 201 6 2017 2016

Pool
Tennis
Water

$ 1,353,739 $
361,942

1,305,295 $
389,339

1 ,371,861 $
469,801

1,310,507 $
462,232

18,122 $
1 07,859

5,212
72,893

5,729,139 5,243,498 6,324,359 6,430,331 595,220 1,186,833

$ 7,444,820 $ 6,938,132 $ 8,166,021 $ 8,203,070 $ 721,201 $ 1,264,938

*Presented net of the portion of the lnternal Service Fund change in net posit¡on that was allocated
back to the business-type activities for years ended May 31 ,2017 and 2016 in the amounts of
($1Z,A0O¡ and $60,889, respectively. The cumulative amount of the lnternal Service Fund's net
position that is allocated to the business-type activities as of May 31 , 2017 is $193,049.

The cost of the business-type activities in the current fiscal year was $7,444,820. The net revenue of
these services after being subsidized by program revenues of $8,166,021 was $721,201.

Expenses and Program Revenues
Busines+type Activities
$7,000,000

r Expenses I ProgEm Revenues

$6,000,000

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

${-
Pool Tennis Water

I
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GOVERNM ENT-WI DE F¡NANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)

Revenue bySource
Gorcrnmental Activities
Foryears ended May 31 ,2017 and 2016

Real property taxes
Other real property tax items
Non-property tax items
Earnings on inrcstments
Gain on sale of capital assets
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Other general rer,enues

Charges for senvices

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Fevenue by Source
Crvernmental Act¡vit¡es

Revenue by Source

For the year ended May 31, 2017 For the yeâr ended Måy 31, 2016

Ohsr g€neral

Charg€s fo¡ssruices Operaling granls and
contibul¡ons

Granls and
conlr¡butions nol

Othêr gsneral
Charg€s lq

conÍibulions not f€slricl6d
o.53"/.

r€sÍict6d progfams
1.580¿programs

1 86q"
Capital grânts and

conlíbulions

Ga¡n on sale of
capital ass6ls

0.0970

Gain on sale d
capilal ass6ts

0.050/.

Earn¡ngs on

0.1 1%

INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSS¡ON AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

2017

$

2016

49,024,471

823,1 51

975,037

62,670
52,741

1,099,600

183,476
5,594,642

41,427

1,303,194

48,965,378
1,020,619

1,016,578

44,100
29,252

943,273

314,007

5,893,799
780,858

697,397

$

$ 59,160,409 $ 59,705,261

Operâling granls and
conlilbulions

Cap¡lal granls and
contr¡but¡ons

1.174à

o.o7./õ

Non-propony

1.65"/.

Non-propeny

Olher ¡€al propedy
lax ilems

1.71%

Real prop€dy lax€s
s2.86%

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE V¡LLAGE'S FUNDS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Village's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Village's
financing requirements. ln particular, spendable fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

82.O1"/.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE'S FUNDS (continued)

Governmental Funds (continued)

At May 31 , 2017, the Village's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of
$22,259,809 an increase of $6,738,735 in comparison to the prior year. The category breakdown is
as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance - $952,966 (inherently nonspendable) includes the portion of
net resources that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, cannot be
converted to cash in the current period or are legally or contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted fund balance - $2,664,451 (externally enforceable limitations on use) include
amounts subject to limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of other governments.

Assigned fund balance - $9,169,046 (limitation resulting from intended use) consists of
amounts where the intended specific purpose is established by the Village Board of Trustees,
but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

Unassigned fund balance - $9,473,346 (residual net resources) is the remaining fund
balance in the General Fund in excess of nonspendable, restricted and assigned fund
balance.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current year, the total
fund balance of the General Fund was $17,393,674, an increase of $1,926,036 from the prior year.
Of this amount, $952,966 is not in spendable form (inventory of material and supplies) and the
remaining $16,440,708 is in spendable form as follows: $466,560 is restricted for debt service
payments, $2,082,037 is restricted for future employee benefit payments, $45,211 has been
restricted for public safety, $2,698,591 has been assigned by the Village Board for the subsequent
year's budget and subsequent year's employee benefits reserve, $1,674,963 has been assigned for
purchase orders by the Treasurer, and the remaining $9,473,346 represents spendable, unassigned
fund balance.

The key elements of the fund balance increase of $1,926,036 are as follows:

There was a budgeted use of prior year fund balance of $1 ,271,452, as well as the prior year
encumbrances carried forward in the amount of $0t 0,191 .

Actual revenues and other financing sources exceeded the final budget by $1,924,296. This is
primarily due to higher than anticipated collection of state and local grants, inclusive of
mortgage tax revenues, in the amount of $651,671 . The Village received premiums related to
the 2016 bond issuance and transfers from the Capital Projects Fund that were not budgeted
for in the amounts of $194,250 and $276,174, respectively. ln addition, safety inspection fees,
public works service revenues and fines and forfeitures exceeded budgeted expectations by
$1 70,875, $243,060 and $1 74,267, respectively.

a

a

a

a

a

a
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN C¡TY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE'S FUNDS (continued)

General Fund (continued)

o Actual expenditures and other financing uses were less than the final budget by $5,487,832,
of which $1,674,963 is reserved for encumbrances to be spent in the next fiscal year. General
government support expenditures were under budget by $3,224,591, primarily a result of
fewer refunds of real property taxes paid in the current year than anticipated due to the timing
of the legal settlements ($1,629,390), unrealized contingency amounts ($686,957) and lower
than anticipated other expenditures related to various legal cases ($qqZ,l85) and salary and
other expenditures in the Clerk-Treasurer department ($3+e,eOA¡. Public safety expenditures
were under budget by $0t 9,674, due to lower than expected other expenses in the police and
fire departments in the amounts of $147,561 and $145,824, respectively, and less payroll
costs of $129,882 and $72,515, mostly due to less overtime. Culture and recreation
expenditures were under budget by $484,494 primarily due to less salary costs, as well as
lower than anticipated utility costs, maintenance costs and contractual services. The Village's
employee benefit costs were lower than expected by $482,288 primarily due to open positions
throughout the fiscal year combined with lower contribution rates for the New York State and
Local Employees' Retirement System and the New York State and Local Police and Fire
Retirement System.

. Overall, there was a minimal increase of actual revenues and other financing sources from the
prior year in the amount $338,759.

. Overall, actual expenditures and other financing uses decreased from the prior year by
$817,164, primarily a result of decreases in general government support ($0tS,OSO¡, culture
and recreation ($349,437), home and community services ($g¿1,946) and employee benefit
expenditures ($901,701) which were offset by the Village transferring out additional funds in
the current year in the amount of $1 ,364,745 compared to the prior year. General government
support expenditures decreased primarily due to less refunds of real property tax settlements
in the current year mostly due to the timing of the cases being settled ($eSZ,OOS¡. Decreases
related to culture and recreation expenditures were a result of the overall reduction of salary
and overtime costs (5429,432) offset by a minimal increase in other expenditures ($103,094)
for the parks, playground and recreation departments. Home and community service
expenditures decreased due to an overall reduction of department costs, most notably related
to refuse and garbage ($187,826) and street cleaning ($tOS,OAO¡ expenditures. Employee
benefit costs decreased due to the Village making an early retirement benefit payment in the
prioryear ($968,917) aswell as decrease in the required contribution tothe NewYork State
and Local Employees' Retirement System and the New York State and Local Police and Fire
Retirement System ($ZZS,SAS¡ which was offset by an increase in the health insurance costs
($5OO,Z++¡. Transfers out increased mainly as a result of the Village Board deciding to fund
additional capital projects in the current year ($1 ,437,569).

Capital Projects Fund

At the end of the current year, the Capital Projects Fund had a total assigned fund balance of
$4,698,102, an increase of $4,820,034 from the prior year. The fund balance increase in the Capital
Projects Fund from the prior year is mainly the result of timing differences between project
expenditures and the recognition of the corresponding financing sources.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE'S FUNDS (continued)

Library Fund

At the end of the current year, the total fund balance of the Library Fund, a nonmajor fund (blended
component unit) of the Village, was $168,033, a decrease of $7,335 from the prior year. Of this
amount, $70,643 is restricted for specific purposes defined by grantors and donors, $74,909 has
been assigned for the subsequent year's budget and $22,481 has been assigned for purchase
orders.

The Library Fund recognized less revenues and other financing sources in the amount of $152,996
compared to prior year as well less expenditures of $231,899. The Library Fund's revenue and other
financing sources decrease was primarily a result of a reduced transfer from the General Fund to
provide funding for Library operations ($1tO,SZ+¡. The overall decrease in Library expenditures of
$231,899 was primarily a result of decreased salary costs ($120,209) and the contribution to the
New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System ($St,0eO¡.

Proprietary Funds

The Village's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements but in more detail.

The Pool Fund's deficit net position at year end was ç704,671. This deficit net position decreased
from the prior year by $102,578, a result of a transfer in from the General Fund to fund the cost of
general maintenance ($77,500), in addition to income from operations of $25,078. ln the current
year, the Pool Fund was able to generate additional membership and guest fees ($41,369). The
Pool Fund's expenses, including depreciation expense, the continued recognition of other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) costs and interest for debt service were consistent with the prior
year.

The Tennis Fund's net position at year end was $109,862. The Tennis Fund's net position increased
from the prior year by $108,527, the result of a minimal increase in membership and guest fees
generated ($8,0S0¡ compared to prior year and reduced operating expenses primarily due to an
employee's retirement ($1 S,+ZO¡.

The Water Fund's net position at year end was $20,648,935, an increase of 5617,720 from the prior
year. The Water Fund recognized less operating revenues in the current year in the amount of
$105,972 primarily due to a reduction in water sales ($80,251), as well as an increase in operating
expenses in the amount of $389,906, mainly a result higher maintenance of equipmen| ($225,207)
and electricity costs ($ZZ,ggl ) for pumping expenses, and additional costs for administrative salaries
($152,+++¡. Net non-operating revenues (expenses) decreased by $t0,057,007 primarily related to
the recognition of legal settlement revenue in the amount of $10,000,000 in the prior year in addition
to an increase in interest related to bonded debt.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE'S FUNDS (continued)

Proprietary Funds (continued)

The lnternal Service Fund's net position at year end was ç2,629,626. The lnternal Service Fund's
net position decreased from the prior year by $175,198. Operating revenues decreased by $988,290
primarily a result of the decrease in the amount recognized related to the over accrual of estimated
claims related to workers' compensation and liability cases ($SO2,0AS¡. There was an increase in
general liability claims ($gZ,gl2) and workers'compensation costs and claims ($93,341) compared
to the prior year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Village appropriated expenditures in the original General Fund budget in excess of estimated
revenues in the amount of $1,881,152, mostly by designating unreserved fund balance from the
prior year in the amount of $1,271 ,452 and reappropriating prior year encumbrances in the amount
of $610,191. Over the course of the year, the Board of Trustees revised the budget as needed so
that expenditures do not exceed appropriations. ln the General Fund, various transfers between
appropriations, as well as additional expenditures appropriated from fund balance, were approved
for this purpose. The amount of appropriated fund balance was increased by $3,604,940 from the
original budget. The increase in appropriated fund balance was primarily to increase amounts
transferred to Capital Projects Fund and the Pool Fund for various projects not anticipated in the
original budget ($2,+01,967) and provide funding for significant payouts of sick and vacation due to
retirements ($1, 1 32,339).

Please see the "General Fund" section for more details on the comparison of final budgets to actual
expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CapitalAssets

The Village's investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for its governmental and
businesstype activities as of May 31 , 2017 , amounts to $59,125,1 65 and $1 9,387,683, respectively.
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment,
roads, curbs, sidewalks, drainage, sewer and water systems, and construction in progress.

During the fiscal year ended May 31 ,2017, the Village's major capital expenditures were as follows:

Road repairs $ 1,275,535
Community Park field rehabilitation 1 ,048,736
Water Meter replacement project 814,365
Public Works equipment 736,691
Repair / replacement of water mains 729,605
Street Lighting LED Projecl 703,160
Sidewalk repairs and curb replacement 645,103
Community Park multi-use field 601,561
Recreation Department equipment 379,444
Gas pump replacement 363,091
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (continued)

Capital Assets (continued)

GapitalAssets - Net of Accum.¡lated Depreciation
As of May31 ,2O17 and2016

Governmental Activities
2017 2016

Land

Construction in progress

Buildings

lmpro\êments other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure:

Roads, curbs, and sidewalks
Drainage and sewer systems

Total net cap¡tal assets

$ 16,748,023 $ 16,748,023 $

$ 59,125,165 $ 57,353,648 $ 19,387,683 $ 18,156,490

Budnestype Activities
2017 2016

11,904,701

867,725
6,344,1 01

1 9,485,1 78

3,775,437

10,495,871

1,067,859

5,676,793

19,468,271

3,896,831

69,212
1,809,331

3,888,189
11,223,839

2,397,112

69,212

1,303,840

3,095,885
10,770,248

2,917,305

$

Cap¡tal Assets - Nêt ot Accumulated Deprec¡ation
Govornmsntal Act¡v¡ties
As of May 31, 2017

lmprovements
otherthen
buildings

L.47%

20.12%

Cap¡tal Aæts- Net ol Accumulated Deprec¡at¡on

Businestype Activit¡es
As of Mây 3l, 2017

Maohlnsry and
Machinery and

10.73%

Land Constluctlon ln
Roads,

curbs, and

32.96%

Bulldlngg
20naE"

lmproEmenls

2433% bu¡Hlnos

sewelsystems

The Village has five-year capital improvement plans for the governmental and business-type
activities. The five-year plans allow for the continued improvements to infrastructure, buildings and
equipment while remaining consistent with the Village's debt service requirements. Annually, the
Village Board of Trustees reviews, updates, and amends the capital plan.

Additional information on the Village's capital assets can be found in Note 3.C to the financial
statements.

Debt Administration

At the end of the çurrent year, the Village had total long-term bonded debt outstanding of
$19,400,380 and $10,139,620 for its governmental and business-type activities, respectively. The
entire debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the Village.

otherlhan

57.90%

6.49%
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (continued)

Debt Administration (continued)

Outstanding debt at May 31,2017 and 2016

Governmental Activities:

Capital loans payable

General obligation bonds payable, exclusire of premium

Total outstanding debt, go\êrnmental activities

INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

May 31 ,2017

2017 2016

$ 19,400,380

_$.__1_9,400,380_

50,229

14,100,000

$

$ 14,150,229

Bud ne s+type Activiti e s:

General obligation bonds payable, exclusir,e of premium

Total outstanding debt, business-type activities

$ 10,139,620 $ 8,740,535

$ 10,139,620 $ 8,740,535

The above does not include premiums related to general obligation bonds in the amount of $360,995
and $115,379 for the governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively, as of
May 31 ,2017 and $135,242 and $26,511 respectively, as of May 31, 2016.

During the current fiscal year, the Village's bonded debt increased by $6,699,465 or 29.33o/", a result
of the issuance of $9,235,000 in general obligation bonds offset by $2,535,535 in principal payments
made during the current year.

Moody's lnvestment Services maintained the Village's credit rating at "Aaa" during the year ended
May 31 ,2017.

Debt Limit

The Village has the power to contract indebtedness for any Village purpose so long as the principal
amount thereof , subject to certain limited exceptions, shall not exceed 7.00% of the average full
valuation of taxable real estate of the Village, and is subject to certain enumerated exclusions and
deductions such as water and certain sewer facilities and cash or appropriations for current debt
service.

The constitutional method for determining full valuation is calculated by taking the assessed
valuation of taxable real estate as shown upon the latest completed assessment roll and dividing the
same by the equalization rate as determined by the State Board of Equalization and Assessment.
The State Legislature is required to prescribe the manner by which such ratio shall be determined.
Average full valuation is determined by taking the sum of the full valuation of the last completed
assessment roll and the four preceding assessment rolls and dividing such sum by five. The
percentage of debt contracting power exhausted at November 30, 2016 was 3.80%.

Additional information on the Village's debt activity can be found in Note 3.D to the financial
statements.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

Propertv Tax

The Village has adopted a budget for the 2017-2018 fiscal year, which factors in inflation and other
adjustments to revenues and expenditures as well as prior year positive fund balances. The 2017-
2018 budget includes an increase in real property tax revenues of $563,730. The tax levy increase
was 1.15% which is under the limit imposed under the tax cap law.

New York State enacted Chapter 97, Laws oÍ 2011 Real Property Tax Levy Cap and Mandate Relief
Provisions, which includes a 2"/" property tax cap for municipalities. Beginning in 2012 and lasting
through at least June 1 5,2020, no local government is authorized to increase its property tax levy by
more than 2"/" or the rate of inflation (whichever is less). Local governments can exceed the tax levy
limit by a 60"/" vote of the governing body and annually adopting a local law. There are permitted
exceptions and adjustments. The Village did not exceed The 2"/" cap, inclusive of allowable exclusion
in the 2017-2018 budget.

Tax Assessment Trends

Assessment reductions resulting from tax certiorari actions continue to erode the Village tax base.
The Village anticipates that this trend will continue for the year ending May 31 , 2018.

LEGAL CONTINGENCY

The Village has been the defendant in an action that was filed in federal district court in 2005. The
case was tried in June 2013 and on December 6, 2013 the U.S. District Court ruled that the Village
had violated the Fair Housing Act as well as 42 U.S. Code 51981 and $1983 and the Equal
Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. As the prevailing party, the plaintiffs have filed a
motion seeking to recover approximately $5.0 million in attorneys'fees and costs, which is subject to
increase as the case continues. On September 11,2014, the court granted the Village's motion to
defer the ruling on the plaintiffs' attorneys' fees and cost request pending the outcome of an appeal
that the Village has filed on the trial court decision with the 2nd Circuit U.S. Court of Appeals. The
appeal was argued in May of 2015, however, the Village was not successful and the plaintiffs are
entitled to the recovery of attorneys' fees and costs. However, the Village believes that it has
insurance coverage for such award. As of the date of this report, the insurance carrier has not
conceded that the Village's coverage would apply and has reserved its rights. The Village intends to
take all reasonable steps to enforce payment. Additional information related to this case can be
found in Note 4.C to the financial statements.

CONTACTING THE VILLAGE'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors
with a general overview of the finances of the Village, and to demonstrate our accountability with the
money we receive. lf you have any questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the lncorporated Village of Garden City, Village Treasurer, Finance Department,
Garden City, New York.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
May 31 ,2017

Primary
Governmental

Activities
Business-$pe

Activities Total
ASSETS

Gurrent Assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Restricted cash
Tax sale certificates
lnventory of material and supplies

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:

Non-depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets,

net of depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities
Due to New York State retirement systems
Unearned revenues
lnternal balances
Noncurrent liabilities due within one year:

Compensated absences
Claims and judgments payable
Tax certioraris payable
General obligation bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Compensated absences
Claims and judgments payable
Other postemployment benefits payable

General obligation bonds payable
Net pension liability - proportionate share

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions

Total Deferred lnflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for culture and recreation
Restricted for public safety
Unrestricted

$ 27,828,169
289,064
357,310

2,664,451
492,505
952,966

15,334,225
920,631

209,93'1

43,162,394
1,209,695

357,310
2,664,451

492,505
1,162€97

$ $

32.584,465 16,464,787 49,049,252

16,748,023

42,377,142

1,878,543

17,509,140

18,626,566

59,886,282
59,125,'165 387,683 78,512,848

91 709 630

I 436 465

I 436 465

2,961,495
605,985
120,039
193,049

588,313
755,333

2,978,624
1,955,845

35,852,470 562,100127

399,097 8,835,562

399 097 8,835,562

1,034,405
37,1 09

832,545
(1e3,049)

13,608

1,124,518

3,995,900
643,094
952,584

-0-

601,921
755,333

2,978,624
3,080,363

10,158,683 2 849 136 13,007,819

7,816,155
5,172,602

48,794,381
17,805,530
8.912.781

180,788 7,996,943
5,172,602

52,019,226
26,936,011

9,417,351

3,224,845
9,'130,481

504,570
88,501,449 13,040,684 101.542,133

98,660,132 15,889,820 114,549,952

8,385,780

1 1,861,395 (27 .374.685)

Total Net Position $ (152,486) $ 20,247,175

See notes to the financial statements.

1,638,449
1,638,449

114,572
114,572

1,753,021
1,753,021

46,886,960
466,560

70,643
45,211

38,501,180
466,560

70,643
45,211

(39,236,080)
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended May 31,2017

Expenses
Charges for

Services

Prooram Revenues

Function/Prooram

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

28,417

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

$ 733,509

325,185
244,500

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities:

General government support
Public safety
Transportation
Economic assistance and opportunity
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
lnterest on debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Pool
Tennis
Water

Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

13,010

5,594,642 41,427 1,303,194

1,353,739
361,942

5, 729.139
8,166,021 -0- -0-

$ 73,360,859 $ 13,760,663 $ 41.427 $ 1,303,194

GENERAL REVENUES:
Real propefi taxes
Other real property tax items
Non-property tax items
Earnings on investments
Gain on sale of capital assets
Grants and contributions not

restricted to specific programs

Other
TRANSFERS

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year

Net Position at End of Year

See notes to financial statements

$ 15,613,'162

24,839,092
4,988,391

32,443
11,942,628
8,062,475

437,848
65,916,039

566,643
3,228,651 $

725,275

818,472
255,601

$

1,371,861
469,801

6,324,359

7
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Net (Exoenses) Revenues and Chanoe inN et Position

Primarv Government
Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities Total

$ (15,046,519)
(21,582,024)

(3,529,607)
(32,443)

(10,785,961)
(7,562,374)

ø37.848\

$ (15,046,519)
(21,582,024)

(3,529,607)
(32,443)

(10,785,961)
(7,562,374)

(437,848\

(58,976,776) (58,976,776)

18,122

107,859
595,220

18,122
'107,859

595,220
-0- 721 201 721,201

(58,976,776) 721,201 (58,255,575)

49,024,471
823,151
975,037

62,670
52,741

17,264

49,024,471

823,151
975,037
79,934
52,741

1,099,600
183,476
(77,500) 77 500

1,099,600
183,476

-0-

52,143,646

(6,833,130)

94 764

8'15,965

52,238,410

(6,017,165)

6,680,644 19 431 210 26 111.854

$ (152,486) g 20,247,175 $ 20,094,689

See notes to financial statements.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
May 31 ,2017

ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Restricted cash
Tax sale certificates
lnventory of materials and supplies

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

and accrued liabilities
Due to New York State

retirement systems
Unearned revenues

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable real property taxes

Total Deferred lnflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable

Restricted

Assigned

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred lnflows of
Resources and Fund Balances

Maior Funds
Nonmajor

Fund

General cap ital Proiects Library Totals

$ 5,535,527 $

25,1 85

$

70,643

$ 20,388,154 $ 5,560,712 $ 378,038 $ 26, 326.904

$ 1,876,5'12 $ 862,610 $ 109,444 $ 2,848,566

15,727,809 $
288,941
332,125

2,593,808
492,505
952,966

307,272
123

21,570,608
289,064
357,3'10

2,664,451
492,505
952 966

570,424
55,039

35,561
65,000

605,985
120,039

2,501,975 862 610 210 005 3,574,590

492,505

492,505

492,505

-0- -0- 492 505

952,966

2,593,808

4,373,554

9,473,346

70,643

97,390

952,966

2,664,451

9,169,046

9,473,346

4,698,102

17,393,674 4,698J02 168,033 22,259,809

$ 20,388,154 $ 5,560,712 $ 378.038 $ 26,326,904

See notes to the financial statements
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
May 31 ,2017

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets less accumulated deprec¡at¡on are included in the
Statement of Net Position:

$ 16,748,023
122,718,823
(80,341,681)

(8,404,468)
(5,927,935)
(2,978,624)

(48,794,381)

(19,761 ,375)
(8,912,781)

$ 22,259,809

59, 1 25,1 65

8,436,465

6,064,512

(94,779,s64)

(112,e2e)

(1,638,449)

492,505

Capital assets - non-depreciable
Capital assets - depreciable
Accumulated deprec¡at¡on

Deferred outflows of resources are included in the Statement of Net Position.

lnternal Service Fund is used to account for the Village's risk retention and the
charges to individual funds. Total assets of the lnternal Service Fund reduced
by an internal payable (a result of the net gain), due to the business-type activities,
reported on the Statement of Net Position.

Long-term liabilities applicable to the Village's governmental activities
are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are

not reported in the funds. However, these liabilities are included in the
Statement of Net Position:

Compensated absences
Claims and judgments payable

Tax certioraris payable

Other postemployment þenefits payable

General obligation bonds payable, inclusive of related premium

Net pension liability - net proportionate share

lnterest payable applicable to the Village's governmental activities
is not due and payable in the current period and accordingly is not reported in the
funds. However, this liability is included in the Statement of Net Position.

Deferred inflows of resources related to the pension plans

are included in the Statement of Net Position.

Deferred inflows of resources that are considered unavailable on the
fund statements because it does not meet the availability criteria and

therefore only reported as revenue on the Statement of Net Position.

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See notes to the financial statements.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended May 31,2Q17

General Capital Projects Library
Maior Funds

Nonmajor
Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds

REVENUES

Real property taxes
Other real property tax items

Non-property tax items
Departmental income
lntergovernmental charges
Use of money and propedy
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Special assessments
Sale of property and

compensation for loss

Fees and services
Miscellaneous local sources
State and local aid
Federal aid

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government support
Public safety
Transportation
Economic assistance

and opportunity
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
lnterest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Principal amount of bond issuance
Premium on bonds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances (Deficits) at
Beginning of Year

49,024,33Q

823,1 51

975,037
2,773,Q04

435
57,584

367,733
1,547,485

239,733

49,Q24,330

823,1 51

975,037
2,773,004

435
59,989

367,733
1,584,463

239,733

$ $

$ 2,405

36,978

32,289
19,568

9,848

369,s43
32,289

130,307
2,194,916

28,417

369,543

1 10,739
1,859,883

28,417
$ szs,l es

58,177,074 325 185 101,088 58,603,347

9,123,293
14,300,154
2,337,041

32,443
4,259,735
4,554,656

1 1,91 1,616

1,480,253
347,302

7,265,938

3,168,931

s,123,293
14,300,154
2,337,041

32,443
7,428,666
4,554,656

11,911,616
7,265,938

1,480,253
347,302

48,346,493 26s 938 3,168,931 58,781,3627

9,830,581 (6,940,753) (3,067,843) (178,015)

258,870
276,174

(8,439,589)

6,735,380

5,301,581
(276,174\

3,060,508

6,735,380
258,870

8,638,263
(8,715,763)

(7,904,545) 11,760,787 3,060,508 6,91 6,750

1,926,036 4,820,034 (7,335) 6,738,735

'15,467,638 (121,932) 175,368 15,521,074

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 17,393,674 $ 4,698,102 $ l0e,Ogg $ 22,259,809

See notes to the financial statements.

-30-



INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended May 31,2017

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 6,738,735

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in

the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The amount
by which depreciation exceeds capital outlay in the current period is:

Capitaloutlay
Depreciation expense
Loss on dispositions

Net change in deferred outflows of resources not reported in the governmental
fund statements related to pensions.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position:

Compensated absences
Tax cedioraris payable
Other postemployment benef its payable
Repayment of capital loans
Bonds issued
Premium on bonds issued
Net pension liability - proport¡onate share
Claims and judgments

Repayment of bond principal
Amortization of bond premiums
Accrued interest costs

Net change in deferred inflows of resources not reported in the governmental
fund statements related to pensions.

The lnternal Service Fund is used by management to charge the costs
of insurance activities to the individual funds. The net gain of the lnternal
Service Fund is reported with governmental activities:

Claims and judgments payable
Workers' compensation premium and other lnternal

Service Fund changes in activity

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See notes to the financial statements

$ 7,368,240
(5,590,876)

(5,847\

247,679
(6e3,707)

(5,46e,4e8)
50,229

(6,735,380)
(258,870)

6,035,234
(2,300,000)
1,435,000

33,117
(90,546)

1,771,517

(7,870,228)

139

(7,746,742)

435,777

(162,328)

(190,932)

28,604

-31 -
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
May 31 ,2017

Business-tvoe Activities Enterprise Funds

Pool Tennis Water
Total

Enterprise Funds
lnternal

Service Fund
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable
lnventory of mater¡als

and supplies

$ 600,296 $
4,460

276,451 $
't40

14,457,478 $
916,031

209,931

15,334,225 $ 6,257,561
920,631

209,931
Total Current Assets 604,756 276,591 't 5,583,440 16,464,787 6,257,561

Noncurrent Assets:
Non-depreciable

capital assets
Depreciable capital assets,

net of depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions

Total Defened Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
and accrued liabilities

Collections in advance-
membership fees

Due to New York State
retirement systems

Compensated absences
General obligation

bonds payable
Claims and

ludgments payable
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Other postemployment

benefits payable
General obligation

bonds payable
Claims and

judgments payable
Net pension

liability - proportionate share
Total Noncurrent L¡abil¡t¡es

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions

Total Deferred lnflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment

in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

47,600

2.317,967 77,710

1,830,943

1 5,1 1 3,463

1,878,543

17. 509,1 40
2,365,567 77 710 16,944,406 19,387,683

32,s27,846 35,852,470
-0-

354,301 6,257,561

29,038 25,069 344,990 399,097
29,038 25,069 344,990 399,097 -0-

1 19,587

774,269

2,700
1,237

176,277

16,070

58,276

2,331
774

898,748

32,O78
11.597

948,241

1,034,405

832,545

37,109
13,608

1,124,518

755,333
1,074,070 77,451 1,890,664 3,042,185 755,333

16,429

278,851

2,324,165

10,281

149,366

154,078

2,796,628

6,806,316

180,788

3,224,845

9,130,481

2,872,602

2 181 25,213 477,176 504,570
2,621,626 r 84,860 10,234,198 13,040,684
3,695,696 262,311 12,124,862 16,082,869 3,627,935

8,336 7,197 99,039 114,572
8,336 7,197 99,039 114,572 -0-

(190,895) 77,710 8,498,965
(513,776) 32,152 12,149,970

_$___g9t,6z_u _$____199,8qL _$____?9,619p9Þ_

8,385,780
11,668,346 2,629,626

_$___?,6?9,6?9_20,054,126

Adjustment to report the cumulative internal balance for the net effect of the activity
between the lnternal Service Fund and the Enterpr¡se Funds over time

Net Position of business-type activ¡ties

See notes to the financial statements.

193,049
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended May 31,2017

Business-tvpe Activit¡es - Enterprise Funds
Total

Pool Tennis Water Enterprise Funds Service Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:

Water sales
Public fire protection
Water services for other

governments
lntergovernmental sales
Membership and guest fees
Other operating revenues

Premiums Charged for
Risk Retention:

General fund
Enterprise funds
Component unit -

Garden City Public Library

OPERATING EXPENSES
Pumping
Transmission and distribution
Purification
Other operat¡ng expenses
Administrative and general
Depreciation
Excess insurance
Claims and judgments

Workers' compensation

$ 1,244,364 $
127,497

468,434
'r ,367

$ 5,470,089 $
676,877

13't,297
36,440

5,470,089
676,877

131,297
36,440

't,712,798

138,520 $

lnternal

220,796

3,681,074
305,691

177,232

9,656

Total Operating Revenues 1,371 ,861 469,801 6,324,359 8,166,021 4,384,793

862,355
203,350
230,659

264,703
83,710
11,021

1,339,537
639,227
431,469
891,725

1 ,1 50,565
1 ,032,1 86

1,339,537
639,227
431,469

2,018,783
1,437,625
1,273,866

16,595

1,353,536
838,849

NON-OPEBATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES)
lnterest on ¡nvestments
lnterest on debt

Total Net Position
at Beginning of Year

Total Operating Expenses

lncome (Loss) from Operations

Total Non-Operating
Revenues (Expenses)

lncome (Loss) before Transfers

Transfer ln

Changes in Net Position

359,434 5,484,709 7,140,507 4,565,072

75,497 110,367 839,650 1 ,025,514 (180,279)

3,704
(54,123\ (2,078)

238 13,322
(235,252)

17,264
(291,453)

5,091

(50,419) (1,840) (221,930)

25,078

77,500

't08,527 617,720

102,578 108,527 617,720

(807,24e) 1 ,335 20,031,215

Í04,671\ $ 109,862 $20,648,935

See notes to the financial statements

(274,189\ 5.091

751,325 (1 75,1 88)

77 500

Total Net Position
at End of Year $

Adiustment for the net effect of the current year activity
between the lnternal Service Fund and Enterprise Funds

Changes in Net Pos¡t¡on ol business-type activities

828,825 (175,188)

2,804,814

$ 2,629,626

(12,860)
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INCORPORATED V¡LLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended May 31,2017

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Pool Tennis Water
Total Enterprise

Funds
lnternal

Service Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACT¡VIT¡ES
Revenue Collected:

Water sales
Public fire protection
Water services for other governments
lntergovernmental sales
Membership and guest fees
Other receipts
Cash for interfund services provided

Payments for Expenses:
Payments to suppliers
Compensation and related expenses
Cash paid for internal services provided

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest and earnings received

Net Cash Provided
by lnvesting Activities

Net Change in Cash

Cash at Beginning of Year

Cash at End of Year

$ 1,335,682 $
127,497

(533,048)
(603,350)

(77,306)

s,485,456 $
676,877
131,297
36,440

9,656

5,485,456
676,877
131,297
36,440

1,802,667
138,520 $

(2,514,534)
(3,018,020)

(305,691)

466,985
1,367

(103,27e)
(21e,230)
(10,232\

220,796
4,1 63,997

(4,374,140)

$

(1,878,2O7)
(2,155,440)

(218,153)

Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities 249,475 135,611

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Due to other funds (820,000)
Litigation settlement
Transfers from other funds 77,500

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital
and Related Financing Activities (742,500\

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets (115,225) (81,800)

Proceeds from capital debt 832,018
Premium from capital debt 31,978
Principal paid on capital debt (210,000) (50,000)

lnterest paid on capital debt (44,160) (2,377)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities 494,611 (134,177) (1,087,996)

2,047,926 2,433,012 10,653

10,000,000

(820,000)

10,000,000
77,500

-0- 10,000,000 9,257,500 -0-

(1,758,447)

1,667,602
64,O92

(840,535)
(220,708)

(1,9s5,472)
2,499,620

96,070
(1,100,s35)

(267,245\

(727,562) -0-

387 238 439 10,064 5 091I

387 238 9,439 10,064 5,091

1,973

598,323

1,672

274,779

10,969,369

3,488,109

10,973,014

4,361,211

15,744

6,24't,817

$ 600,296 $ 276,451 $ 14,457,478 $ 15,334,225 $ 6,2s7,561

See notes to the financial statements
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended May 31,2017

Business-tvoe Activities - Fnternrise Funds

Pool Tennis

(continued)

RECONCTLTATTON OF THE TNCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS TO NET GASH

PROVIDED BY OPERATING AGTIVITIES:

Water
Total Enterprise

Funds
lnternal

Service Fund

lncome (loss) from Operations
Adjustments to reconcile operating

income to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:

Accounts receivable
lnventory
Deferred outflows related to pension
Depreciation expense
Accounts payable

and accrued liabilities
Due to New York State

retirement system
Compensated absences
Other postemployment

benefits payable
Collections in advance
Net pension liability - proportionate share
Deferred inflows related to pension
Claims and judgments payable

Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities

$ 75,497 $ 110,367 $ 839,650 $ 1,025,514 $ (180,279)

(352) (40)

(159,674) 6,556 (130,422) (283,540)

51,925
230,659

44,920
11,021

(851)
(363)

18,306
(1,409)

(50,183)
(2,713)

15,367
1,941

389,985
1 ,032,1 86

14,975
1,941

486,830
1,273,866

(e81)
(3,232)

29,033
91,670

(61,942)
(3,1 28)

(1,336)
25,1 59

160,953

(280,531)
(5,026)

(3,1 68)
21,564

208,292
90,261

(392,656)
(10,867)

190,932

$ 249,475 $ 135.611 $ 2,047,926 $ 012 $ 10,653

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Amortization of bond premiums
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities related to capital assets

$ 3,317

56,020

Total Noncash lnvesting,
Capital and Financing Activities $ 59,337 $ -0- $ 694,767 $ 754.104

$ 3,883

690,884

$ 7,200

746.904

$ -0-

See notes to the financial statements,
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ASSETS

Cash
Due from others

LIABILITIES

Building fees and other deposits
Justice court fund
Other agency liabilities

INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FIDUCIARY FUND
May 31 ,2017

See notes to the financial statements.

Agency
Fund

$ 4,539,456
't7,807

Total Assets $ 4,557,263

$ 3,285,243
169,762

1,102,258

TotalLiabilities $ 4,557,263
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The lncorporated Village of Garden City (the "Village") was established in 1919 and is governed by
Village Law and other general laws of the State of New York and various local laws. The Board of
Trustees, which is the legislative body responsible for the overall operation of the Village, consists of
the Mayor and seven trustees elected for two-year terms. The Mayor serues as the Chief Executive
Officer. The Mayor and the Board of Trustees appoint the Chief Fiscal Officer of the Village. The
Mayor, with ratification by the Board of Trustees, annually appoints the principal department heads.

The Village provides a full range of municipal services including police, fire, sewer, water, sanitation,
street maintenance, building, zoning, parks, recreation, library and general and administrative
services.

The financial statements of the Village have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The more significant of the government's accounting policies are described below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity consists of: (a) the primary government, which is the Village; and
(b) a component unit organization for which the primary government is financially accountable
(blended component unit). Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary
government's operations, even though they are separate legal entities. Thus, the blended
component unit, described below, is appropriately presented as a fund of the primary
government.

The Garden City Public Library (the "Librar/') was established by the Village for the benefit of its
residents and granted a chafier by the State Board of Regents as provided in Article 5 of the
Education Law. Although the Library is a separate legal entity, the Village appoints Library
trustees, raises taxes and finances the Library's operations through the transfer of funds to the
Library, has title to real property used by the Library, and issues all Library indebtedness which
is supported by the full faith and credit of the Village.

Complete financial statements of the Garden City Public Library can be obtained by contacting:

Garden City Public Library
60 7th Street,

Garden City, NY 11530

B. GOVERNMENT.WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Village's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Village
as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Village's major funds).

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Village as a whole with
separate columns for the primary governmental activities and business-type activities.

37



INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Government-wide Financial Statements (continued)

For the most paft, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements, except for interfund services provided and used. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reporled
separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and
charges for support.

The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, seruices, or privileges provided
by a given function, 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operation or
capital requirements of a particular function, and 3) interest earned on grants or capital projects
that is required to be used to support a particular program or project. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. The Village does
not allocate indirect expenses to specific functions in the Statement of Activities.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the Village are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, fund balances, revenues, and expenditures, which are segregated
for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with
special regulations, restrictions or limitations. The various funds are presented by type in the
fund financial statements. The focus of the governmental funds financial statements is on the
major funds. Accordingly, the Village maintains the following fund types:

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental
functions are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of expendable financial resources
and the related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement
focus of the governmental funds is upon determination of financial position and changes in
financial position. Governmental funds are further classified as major and nonmajor funds.

The Village reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - is the principal operating fund of the Village. This fund is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

Caoital P ects Fund - is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the
acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets other than those
financed by proprietary funds.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Governmental Funds (continued)

Additionally, the Village reports on the following nonmajor governmental fund:

Special Revenue Fund - is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than
debt service or capital projects. The following Special Revenue Fund is utilized:

Library Fund - used to account for all activity of the Garden City Public Library, serving as a
center of information and providing community programming for the area.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are used to account for ongoing activities which are
similar to those often found in the private sector. Proprietary fund financial statements
include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund. The Village
presents all proprietary funds as major funds because the Village believes the financial
position and activities of these funds are significant to the Village as a whole.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position.

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds - used to account for the following operations:

Water Fund - used to account for operations related to water billings.

Pool Fund - used to account for operations at the Village's swimming pool

Tennis Fund - used to account for operations at the Village's tennis bubble.

lnternal Service Fund - used to account for special activities or services provided by one
department to the other departments or to other governments on a cost-reimbursement
basis.

lnternal service funds of a government (which traditionally provide services primarily to other
funds of the government) are presented, in summary form, as part of the proprietary fund
financial statements. Since the principal users of the internal services are the Village's
governmental activities, financial statements of internal service funds are consolidated into
the governmental column when presented at the government-wide level. The costs of these
services are allocated to the appropriate functional activity (general government support,
public safety, health, transportation, economic assistance and opportunity, culture and
recreation, home and community services, etc.).
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Proprietary Funds (continued)

When significant, surplus or deficits in the lnternal Service Fund may be allocated back to
the business-type funds at the government-wide level Statement of Activities. This creates a
reconciling item between the business{ype activities column and the proprietary fund
statements.

The lnternal Service Fund includes the following fund

Risk Retention Fund - used to account for transactions and reserves set aside by the Village
to provide for risk management programs.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Village in a
trustee or custodial capacity.

The Village has reported the following fiduciary fund:

Agency Fund - used to account for money received and held in the capacity of trustee,
custodian or agent. The Village uses this fund to account for Justice Court monies held and
various deposits such as building fees.

The Village's Agency fund is presented in the fund financial statements. Since, by definition,
these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the
government-wide statements.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being
measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting
indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The governmenlwide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the Village generally considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within sixty (60) days of the end of the current period.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (continued)

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences,
tax certioraris, pollution remediation obligations, capital loans, proportionate share of the net
pension liabilities, and other postemployment benefits are recorded when payment is due.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. lssuance
of long{erm debt is reported as other financing sources.

Revenues susceptible to accrual are mortgage tax, franchise fees, charges for seruices, state
and federal aid, intergovernmental revenue and operating transfers. Permit fees and other
similar revenues are not susceptible to accrual because they are not measurable until received
in cash. ln those instances where expenditures are the prime factor in determining eligibility for
state and federal grants, revenues are recognized when the expenditure is incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish between operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in
connection with the fund's ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Village's
propriety funds are charges to customers for water sales, membership and guest fees to the
pool and tennis facilities, and premiums for the risk management program. Operating expenses
include costs of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses.

Because governmental fund statements are presented using a measurement focus and basis of
accounting different from that used in the government-wide statements' governmental column, a
reconciliation is presented that briefly explains the adjustments necessary to reconcile ending
net position and the change in net position.

The Agency Fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for
reporting its assets and liabilities.

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCE

1. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash consists of funds deposited in demand accounts and time deposit accounts. For
purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Village considers all highly liquid investments
with a maturity when purchased of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At May 31,
2017, the Village did not have any cash equivalents. The Statement of Cash Flows
presented uses the direct method of reporting cash flows.

State statutes govern the Village's investment policies. The Village has its own written
investment policy stating that Village money must be deposited in FDIC-insured commercial
banks or trust companies located withln the State. The Village is authorized to use demand
accounts and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S.
Treasury and U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the New York State
or its localities. All demand accounts and time deposit accounts are carried at cost. The
Village did not own any investments as of May 31 ,2017.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCE (continued)

1. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Collateral is required for demand deposits and time deposits accounts at 102"/" of ail
deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. The Village's investment policy defines
acceptable forms of collateral as: obligations that may be pledged as collateral including
obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its
municipalities and school districts.

2. RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Receivables relating to governmental activities primarily include amounts due from other
governments related to mortgage tax, court fines, and various grant agreements as well as
amounts due from individuals and entities for services provided by the Village. ln addition,
the Village's receivables include the amount of Village owned tax certificates, including
interest and fees. A corresponding deferred inflow of resources is reported in the
governmental fund statements for the amount of tax certificates.

Receivables relating to business-type activities primarily consist of amounts due from
residents and other entities for seruices rendered. Receivables are recorded and revenues
recognized as earned or as specific program expenditures are incurred.

lnterfund transactions, exclusive of interfund services provided and used, have been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. ln the funds statements,
intedund transactions include:

a) lnterfund Revenues

lntedund revenues and interfund services provided and used, in the General and
Water Funds represent amounts charged for services or facilities provided by the
General and Water Funds. The amounts paid by the fund receiving the benefits of the
service or facilities are reflected as an expenditure of that fund. Transfers for risk
management programs are classified as insurance expense in the operating funds and
premiums in the lnternal Service Fund.

b) Transfers

Transfers represent payments to the Library Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Pool
Fund from the General Fund to support operations and to fund various capital projects
per the Board adopted budget as modified. Other transfers from the Capital Projects
Fund to the General Fund are residual equity transfers from closed out completed
projects.

lnternal balances reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position, represent
the portion of the net position in the lnternal Service Fund that was allocated to the
business-type activities in the current year.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCE (continued)

3. INVENTOR¡ES

lnventories in the General Fund and Water Fund, consisting of expendable supplies and
spare parts held for consumption, are valued at average cost. These inventories are
accounted for on the consumption method and recorded as an expenditure at the time of
usage. ln the General Fund, amounts reported as inventory are equally offset by
nonspendable fund balance, indicating that is does not constitute "available spendable
resources" even though it is a component of net current assets.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are
reported in applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds. Capital
assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $500 or more and have a useful life
greater than a year, are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed
capital assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date of the donation to the Village.

Costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Renewals and
betterments are capitalized. lnterest has not been capitalized during the construction period
on property, plant or equipment.

lnfrastructure assets consisting of certain improvements other than buildings including roads,
curbs, sidewalks, drainage systems and sewer systems, and water mains are capitalized
along with other capital assets.

Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings
lmprovements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
I nf rastructu re systems:

Roads, curbs and sidewalks
Drainage systems
Sewer systems
Water mains

20 - 50 years
10 - 30 years
3 - 25 years

20 years
20 years
50 years

100 years

ln the fund financial statements, capital assets are recorded as capital outlay expenditures in

the governmental fund upon acquisition.

5. UNEARNEDREVENUE

Unearned revenues, reported as liabilities in the fund and government-wide financial
statements, are those which asset recognition criteria have been met, but which revenue
recognition criteria have not been met for exchange type transactions. Such amounts include
collections in advance, unearned income and amounts that have been deemed to be
"measurable" but not "available" to finance current expenses.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCE (continued)

6. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

ln addition to assets, the Balance Sheet or Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element represents a consumption of fund balance or net position that applied to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
that time. The Village has reported deferred outflows of resources of $8,835,562, of which
$8,436,465 relates to governmental activities and $399,097 relates to business-type
activities, for pension related activities in the government-wide and proprietary Statement of
Net Position.

ln addition to liabilities, the Balance Sheet or Statement of Net Position will sometimes report
a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. The separate financial statement
element represents an acquisition of fund balance or net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
Village has one type of transaction, Village owned tax sale certificates, which arises only
under the modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category,
and accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds
Balance Sheet. On the government-wide and proprietary fund Statement of Net Position, the
Village reports a deferred inflow of resources of $1 ,753,021, of which $1,638,449 relates to
governmental activities and $1 14,572 relates to businesstype activities. This deferred inflow
of resources relates to changes in proportion and differences between the contributions and
proportionate share of the Village's net pension liability as well as differences between
expected and actual experience.

7. LONG.TERM OBLIGATIONS

ln the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, liabilities for long{erm
obligations consisting of compensated absences, claims and judgments payable, tax
certioraris payable, other postemployment benefits payable, the proportionate share of the net
pension liabilities, the capital loan payable, and general obligation bonds payable are repofted
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type Statement of Net Position.

Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds on a
straight-line basis. Bonds payable are reported net of applicable bond premium or discount.
Debt issuance costs are expensed as incurred.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period, in the fund servicing the
debt. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuance costs, whether or not withheld from
actualdebt proceeds received, are repofted as debt service expenditures.
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D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCE (continued)

8. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

ln the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is reported in
three categories:

1) Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Accounts payable that are related to
capital projects are used in the calculation of net investment in capital assets.

2) Restricted net position - consists of net position with constraints placed on the use
either by (a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

3) Unrestricted net position - remaining net position that does not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."

ln the fund financials statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five
classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these
resources; they are 1) nonspendable, 2) restricted 3) committed, 4) assigned, or 5)
unassigned.

1) Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form (i.e. prepaid items or inventories), or (b) will not convert
to cash within the current period (i.e. long term receivables and financial assets held for
resale), or (c) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e. the principal
of a permanent fund).

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining four classifications:
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

2) Restricted fund balance reflects the constraints imposed on resources either (a)
externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

3) Committed fund balance reflects amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
by a government using its highest and most binding level of decision making authority.
The Village's highest decision making authority is the Board of Trustees, who by
adoption of a Village ordinance prior to year end, can commit fund balance. Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of
Trustees removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action
imposing the commitment. At May 31, 2017, the Village did not have any committed
fund balance.
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OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCE (continued)

8. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE CLASSFICIATIONS (continued)

4) Assigned fund balance reflects the amounts constrained by the Village's "intent" to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The Board of
Trustees has delegated their authority to assign amounts to be used for specific
purposes to the Village Treasurer.

5) Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. lt is also
used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

9. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE FLOW ASSUMPTIONS

When outlays for a particular purpose can be funded from both restricted and unrestricted net
position resources in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, it is the
Village's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted
net position is applied.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Village's policy
to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned and
unassigned - in order as needed.

10. FUND BALANCE POLICY

The Village Board has adopted a fund balance policy to maintain a minimum unassigned
fund balance in the General Fund equal to two percent (27.) of subsequent year's expected
expenditures. lf the fund balance falls below the established minimum level, the Village
Board will develop a plan to replenish fund balance to the minimum level in the subsequent
year's budget.

E. REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

1. REAL PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION PROCEDURES

The Village's property taxes are levied and become a lien on June 1st, each fiscal year.
Taxes are levied based upon the taxable value of all real property located within the Village.
Taxes are recorded as a receivable on June 1st, and are payable one-half by July 1st, and
one-half by December 31st, each year. Current year delinquent property taxes not collected
by March 31st are placed on tax sale.

For the year ended May 31 , 2017, the maximum amount of taxes which could be levied by
the Village based on the foregoing was $121 ,254,811. The actual real property taxes levied
by the Village for the year ended May 31 ,2017 was $49,000,509. The State Constitution
limits the amount of revenue which the Village can raise from the real estate tax for operating
purposes to two percent (2"/") of the average full value of taxable real estate within the
Village for the most recent five year period plus any amounts required to pay principal and
interest on certain indebtedness.
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E. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES (continued)

2. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

ln addition to providing pension benefits, the Village provides health insurance coverage
and survivor benefits for retired employees and their survivors. Substantially all of the
Village's employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement
age while working for the Village as well as meet certain years of service requirements.

Health care benefits in accordance with New York State Health lnsurance Rules and
Regulations (administered by the New York State Department of Civil Service), are
provided through the New York State Empire Plan (the "Empire Plan") whose premiums
are based on the benefits paid throughout the State during the year.

ïhe Village recognizes the cost of providing benefits by recording its share of insurance
premiums as an expenditure in the year paid. The Village's union contracts and ordinances
require that it provide its eligible enrollees with the Empire Plan benefit coverage, or if
another provider is utilized, the equivalent coverage. Under the provisions of the Empire
Plan, premiums are adjusted on a prospective basis for any losses experienced by the
Empire Plan. The Village has the option to terminate its participation in the Empire Plan at
any time without liability for its respective share of any previously incurred loss. The liability
for other postemployment benefits is recorded as a noncurrent liability in the government-
wide and proprietary fund statements.

3. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The liability for vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave (compensated absences) is
recorded as current and noncurrent obligations in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical
trends. The compensated absences liability and expense are reported in the governmental
funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignation and
retirements.

The amount that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is
reported as a liability in the fund financial statements of the respective fund that will pay it.

4. PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net positions of the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System
and the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System, which are
collectively referred to as New York State and Local Retirement Systems (the "Systems")
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Systems. For this
purpose, the Systems recognize benefit payments when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms and reports investments at fair value.
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E. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES (continued)

5. R¡SK MANAGEMENT

The lnternal Service Fund services all claims for risk of loss to which the Village is exposed,
including general liability and workers' compensation claims. All funds of the Village
participate. Based on actuarial estimates, liabilities have been established in the self-
insurance fund for claims reported but not paid, and incurred but not reported. The Village
allocates the cost of providing claims servicing and claims payment by charging a "premium"
to each fund. This charge considers recent trends in actual claim experience of the Village
as a whole and makes provisions for catastrophic losses. The premiums paid by the
operating funds are accounted for as expenditures/expenses of the funds.

F. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of monies are recorded for budgetary control purpose, is employed in the
governmental funds. Encumbrances are reported as restrictions, commitments, or
assignments of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.
Expenditures for such commitments are recorded in the period in which the liability is incurred.
Appropriations for all governmental funds except the Capital Projects Fund lapse at year end.
However, encumbrances reserved against fund balance are re-appropriated in the ensuing
year.

G. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of basic financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

H. NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Village has adopted all of the current Statement of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) that are applicable. For the year ended May 31 ,2017, the Village adopted:

Statement No. 72 "Fair Value Measurement and Applicatiorl' includes requirements that will
enhance the comparability of financial statements among governments by requiring the
measurement of certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a consistent and more detailed
definition of fair value and accepted valuation techniques. This Statement also will enhance fair
value application guidance and related disclosures in order to provide information to financial
statement users about the impact of fair value measurements on a government's financial
position. The implementation of this Statement did not have any impact on the Village's financial
statements.

Statement No. 73 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That
Are Not Within the Scope of GASB 68, and amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB 67 and
68' clarities the existing guidance as well as establish new requirements for pensions not
covered by Statement No. 67 and No. 68. The requirements of this statement that clarify the
existing guidance is effective for the current year. The requirements that address the accounting
and financial reporting by employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for
pensions not within the scope of Statement No. 68 will be effective for the year ended May 31,
2018. The current year implementation requirements of this Statement did not have any impact
on the Village's financial statements.
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H. NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued)

Statement No. 76, "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and
Local Governmenfs," the objective of which is to identify, in the context of the current
governmental financial reporting environment, the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting
principles. The implementation of this Statement had no impact on the Village's financial
statements.

Statement No. 77, "Tax Abatement Disclosures," provides the users of financial statements with
information about the nature and magnitude of tax abatements, and helping the users
understand how tax abatements affect the Village's future ability to raise resources and meet its
financial obligations, as well as the impact on the Village's financial position and economic
condition. The Village has evaluated this pronouncement and determined that the information
related to tax abatement agreements that were entered into by other organizations is
immaterial and therefore disclosure is not necessary. The Village will reevaluate the tax
abatements each year and will disclose when deemed significant.

Statement No. 78, "Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit
Pension Plans," amends the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68. This Statement
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for defined benefit pensions provided to
employees of a state or local governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple employer
defined benefit pension plan that meets certain criteria of Statement No. 68 and that (a) is not a
state or local governmental pension plan, (b) is used to provide defined benefit pensions both to
employees of state/local governmental employers as well as to employees of non-state/local
governmental employers and (c) has no predominant state or local governmental employer,
either individually or collectively with other state or local governmental employers that provide
pensions through the pension plan. The implementation of this Statement had no impact on the
Village's financial statements.

I. SUBSEOUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the
financial statements through the date of the financial statements.

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMAT¡ON

Budqet Policies

The Village follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

a) Approximately four months prior to May 31st, the Village Treasurer will submit a proposed
operating budget for the General Fund for the fiscal year commencing June 1st. The
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

b) Public hearings are conducted to obtain the public's comments on the proposed budget. On
or before May 1st, the proposed budget is officially adopted by the Board of Trustees and tax
rates are established.

c) Revenues are budgeted by source. Expenditures are budgeted by department and character
(personal services, equipment and capital outlay, contractual expenditures, etc.) which
constitutes the legal level of control. Expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed
appropriations at this level. All budget revisions at this level are subject to final approval of
the Board of Trustees. Within these control levels, the Village Treasurer is authorized to
make transfer appropriations without Board approval.
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2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILIW (continued)

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION (continued)

Budoet Policies (continued)

d) Appropriations lapse at the close of the year to the extent that they have not been expended
or encumbered. Activities of all funds, except the Capital Projects Fund, are appropriated
through this annual budget process and controlled through the purchase requisition system.
The Capital Projects Fund is approved through resolutions authorizing individual projects
which remain in effect for the life of the project.

e) The budget for the General Fund is legally adopted each year. Budgets are adopted on a
basis of accounting consistent with GAAP. ln the event that actual revenues received exceed
budgeted amounts, additional budgetary appropriations may be made. The Capital Project
Fund is budgeted on a project or grant basis.

New York State enacted Chapter 97, Laws ol 2011 Real Property Tax Levy Cap and Mandate
Relief Provisions, which includes a two percent (2%) property tax cap for municipalities.
Beginning in 2012 and lasting through at least June 1 5,2020, no local government is authorized
to increase its property tax levy by more than two percent (2o/o) or the rate of inflation (whichever
is less); however, local governments can exceed the tax levy limit by a 60o/o vote of the
governing body and annually adopting a local law.

B. FUND BALANCE

The following table provides the detail regarding fund balance categories and classifications for
the governmental funds which show components of nonspendable fund balances, as well as the
purposes for restricted, and assigned fund balance. The unassigned fund balance is also shown.

General Capital Projects Library
Fund Fund Fund Total

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:

ln\êntory $ 952,966 $ 952,966
Total Nonspendable 952,966 $ -0- $ -0- 952,966

Restr¡cted for:

Grantor and donor restr¡ct¡ons

Debt service
Employee benefit accrued liabilities
Other restrictions

Total Restricted

Assigned to:

Subsequent year's budget
Subsequent year's

employee benefit accrued liabilities -

Purchases on order
Capital projects and

contractual obligations
lotal Assigned

Unassigned, reported in:

General Fund

Total Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

466,560

2,082,O37

45,211

70,643 70,643
466,560

2,082,037
45,211

2,593,808 -0- 70,643 2,664,451

1,798,591

900,000
1,674,963

74,909

22,481

1,873,500

900,000

5,170,234

1,225,312

3,472,790

1,225,312
4,373,554 4,698,1 02 97,390 9,1 69,046

9,473,346
-0- -0- 9,473,346

$ 17,393,674 $ 4,698,102 $ 168,033 $ 22,259,809

*Effective June 1 ,2017, this assignment will become restricted fund balance per the Village's 2017-2018
legally adopted budget.
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3. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk - Deoosits/lnvestments - Custodial credit risk for deposits exists when,
in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government may be unable to
recover deposits, or recover collateral securities that are in possession of an outside agency.
Custodial credit risk for investments exists when, in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in possession of an outside party.

Deposits are required to be disclosed as exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not
covered by depository insurance, and the deposits are either:

o Uncollateralized,
r Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or
. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department

or agent but not in the Village's name.

At May 31,2017, the Village's cash book balance was $50,365,520. This amount is inclusive
of Fiduciary Fund deposits of $4,539,456 and restricted cash of $70,643 but exclusive of petty
cash of $7S1. The bank balance was $50,730,811. Of the bank balance, $967,536 was
covered by Federal deposit insurance, and $49,763,275 was covered by collateral held bythe
Village's agent, a third-party financial institution, in the Village's name.

Credit Risk - State law and Village law limit investments to those authorized by State statues
The Village has a written investment policy.

lnterest-rate Risk - lnterest-rate risk arises because potential purchasers of debt securities will
not agree to pay face value for those securities if interest rates substantially increase, thereby
affording potential purchasers more favorable rates on essentially equivalent securities.
Accordingly, such investments would have to be held to maturity to avoid a potential loss.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Credit risk can arise as a result of failure to adequately diversify
investments. Concentration risk disclosure is required for positions of 5.0% or more in

securities of a single issuer.

As of May 31 ,2017, the Village of Garden City did not have any investments subject to credit
risk, interest-rate risk or concentration of credit risk.

The General Fund's cash includes an amount of $2,593,808 which the use of funds is
restricted by law or enabling legislation. The Library Fund's cash includes amounts received
from donors in previous years in the amount of $70,643 that may only be used for specific
purposes. Accordingly, these balances are reported as restricted cash on the Balance Sheet
and Statement of Net Position.

B. INTERFUND RECEIVABLE, PAYABLE AND TRANSFERS

For the year ended May 31 , 2017, transfers were used to move General Fund resources to the
Library Fund for operations, the Pool Fund for capital purchases, and the Capital Project Fund
for capital improvements. Transfers from the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund
represent residual amounts for completed closed out projects that were originally financed with
bond proceeds or operating transfers from the General Fund.
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3. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

B. INTERFUND RECEIVABLE, PAYABLE AND TRANSFERS (continued)

The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended May 31 ,2017 is as follows:

Transfers ln Transfers Out

tMajor Funds:
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund

Nonmajor Fund:
Library Fund

Proprietary Fund:
Pool Fund

Total

$ 276,174
5,301,581

8,439,589
276,174

$

3,060,509

77,500

$ 8,r1s,?69 $ 8,71sJ69

C. CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes within the governmental activities capital assets for the year ended
May 31 ,2017 is as follows:

Balance Balance
Gowmmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Depreciable cap¡tal assets :

Buildings
lmprorcments other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure:
Roads, curbs and sidewalks
Drainage and sewer systems

Total depreciable capltal assets
Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings
lmprolements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure:

Roads, curbs and sidewalks
Drainage and sewer systems

Total accum ulated depreciation
Total net depreciable capital assets

Total net capital assets

7,368,240 61 1,603 122,718,823

June 1 2016 Additions Deletions May 31 ,2017

$ 16,748,023 $ 16,748,023

30,909,037 $
7,718,676

21,174,212

45,075,266
11,084,995

3,401 ,573
55,465 $

1,884,546

1,896,323
130,333

8,500

603,1 03

34,310,610
7,765,641

22,455,655

46,971,589
11,215,328

1 15,962,186

20,413,166
6,650,817

15,497,419

1,992,743
252,270

1,214,720

1,879,416
251.727

5,171
600,585

22,405,909
6,897,916

16,1 1 1 ,554

27,486,411
7,439,891

25,606,995
7,188,164

$ 75,356,561

Depreciation expense was charged to go\emmental functions as follows
General go\ernment support
Publ¡c safety
Transportat¡on
Culture and recreation
Home and community senices

Total depreciation expense - goremmental activities

$ 5,590,876 $ 605 756 80,341 ,681

42,377,142
$ 59,125,165

$ 1 , 141 ,931
635,558

1,629,060
1,574,291

610,036
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3. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

C. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

A summary of changes within the business-type activities capital assets for the year ended
May 31 ,2017 is as follows:

Balance

June 1, 2016 Add¡tions Deletions

Balance

May 31, 2017Business{ype activities :

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Depreciable capital assets:

Buildings

lmprowments other than buildings

Machinery and equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings

lmpro\ements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total net depreciable capital assets

Total net capital assets

69,212

1,303,840 $ 2,170,778 $ 1,665,287
$ $ 69,212

1,809,331

1,373,052 2,170,778 '1,665,287 1,878,543

10,451,971

17,016,588

13,943,537

1,077,152

796,746

125,670

11,529,123

17,813,3U

14,069,207

41,412,096 1,999,568 -0- 43,411,6æ

7,356,086

6,246,U0

11,026,232

284,848

343, I 55

645,863

7,640,934

6,589,495

11,672,095

$ 24,628,658 $ r,273,866 $ -0- 25,902,524

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Culture and recreation - pool and tennis activities

Home and community services - water services

Total depreciation expense - business{ype activities

17,509,140

$ 19,387,683

$ 241,681

1 ,032, 1 85

$ 1,273,866

Depreciation for the Village is recorded on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,

in years, of the respective assets.

The Village evaluates prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting capital assets to
determine whether impairment of a capital asset has occurred. The Village's policy is to record

an ¡mpairment loss in the period when the Village determines that the carrying amount of the
asset will not be recoverable. No such impairment losses have been recorded during the year

ended May 31 ,2017.

D. INDEBTEDNESS

LONG.TERM DEBT

Capital Loans Payable

The Village's capital loans payable consisted of two loans due to the New York Power
Authority ("NYPA"), an outside third party. The borrowings were used to finance capital
projects performed by the Village and was based on a variable rate. The remaining loan

balances were repaid in full during the year ended May 31 ,2017.

General Obligation Bonds Payable

The Village borrows money in order to acquire land or equipment or to construct buildings and

improvements. These long-term liabilities, which are the full faith and credit debt of the Village,

are reported as governmental and business{ype activities.
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3. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D. INDEBTEDNESS (continued)

LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

General Obligation Bonds Payable (continued)

At May 31,2017, bonds payable consisted of the following individual issues

Governmental Activities:
Original Year of Final lnterest

Description of lssue and Puroose Debt ritv Rate
Outstanding

Balance

Building construction, 2006 $
Community Park improvements, 2008

Village Hall improvements, 2010

Various road and lighting improvements,
resurfacing of parking fields, 2012

Various road and building improvements,
acquisition of fire truck, 2014

Various road and curb installation,

building demolition, 2015

Senior recreation center/road repairs, 2015

Various road, building and sewer improvements,

field rehabilitation, acquisition of various

equipment, 2016

3,875,000 2027 2.000o/o - 2.625% 2,145,000

2,189,500 2024 1.000 - 2.000% ',î,800,000

950,000
2,350,000
2,555,500

3,090,000
3,500,000

6,735,380

2021
2022
2025

2025
2025

4j00% - 4.200o/o $
3.000% - 3,600%
1.500% - 3.500%

2.000o/o -2.375%
1.250% - 2.000%

340,000
865,000

1,210,000

2,805,000

3,500,000

6,735,3802033 2.000%-3.000%

Total Governm ental Activities $ 19,400,380

Busi ness-type Activities:

Description of lssue and Puroose
Original Year of Final

Maturity

lnterest
Rate

Outstanding
Balance

Water Fund:

Water system improvements, 2006

Water system improvements, 2008

Water system improvements, 2010

Water system improvements, 2015

Water meter replacement program, 20'16

Pool Fund:

Pool improvements, 20'12

Pool bathroom renovations, 2016

$ 1,585,000
4,365,000
4,210,000
2,365,535
1,667,602

2,135,000
832,018

4j00% - 4.2000/o

3.000% - 3.600%
1.500% - 3.500%
2.000% - 2.7500/o

2.000% - 3.000%

$ 535,000
1,575,000
1,665,000
2,250,000
1,667,602

2021
2022
2025
2031
2033

2027 2.000% - 2.625%
2033 2.000% - 3.000%

1,6't5,000
832,018

Total Business-type Activities $ 10,139,620

Future principal and interest payments for the general obligation bonds are as follows

Governmental Activities:

1,924,138
1,967,786
2,043,725
2,059,666
2,070,607
6,428,066
2,384,914

521,478

483,506
44,372
395,959
345,342
293,690
823,553
297,132

15.644

TotalPrincipal
and lnterest

$ 2,407,644
2,412,158
2,439,684
2,405,008
2,364,297
7,251,619
2,682,046

lnterest

Years ending tt/lay 31, 2018 $
2019
2020
2021
2022

2023 - 2027
2028 - 2032

2033

$

537 122

Total $ 19,400,380
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3. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D. INDEBTEDNESS (continued)

LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

General Obligation Bonds Payable (continued)

Busi ness-type Activities:

Water Fund

Principal lnterest

INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pool Fund

Princioal lnterest
TotalPrincipal

and lnterest

Years ending lttlay 31, 2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

2023 - 2027

2028 -2032
2033

Governmental Activities:
General obligat¡on bonds

Plus premiums on issuance

Total general obligation bonds

Compensated absences

Claims and judgments payable

Tax certioraris payable

Net pension liability -

proportionate share

Other postemployment

benefits payable

Capital loans payable

Governmental activities

long-term activities

Business-type Activities:
General obligation bonds

Plus premiums on issuance

Total general obligation bonds

Compensated absences

Net pension liability -

proportionate share

Other postemployment

benefits payable

Business{ype activities

$ 1,238,167 $ 2,447 .018

$ 943,968

964,870
947,579
855,287
732,995

1,808,318

1,310,477
129,108

$ 7,692,602

s 223,924 $
197,130

132,823
137,157
106,223
325,026
112,011

3,873

'171,894

172,344
173,696

175,047
186,398

1,208,616

294,609
u,414

$ 61,957
58,860
54,990

51,079
46,905

149,919

36,704
1,932

$ 462,346

$ 1,401,743
1,393,204
1,309,088

1,218,570
1,072,521
3,491,879
1,753,801

199,327

Total $ 11 133

There are no outstanding general obligation bonds for the Tennis Fund as of May 31,2017

CHANGES IN LONG.TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability act¡vities for the year ended May 31 ,2017 are as follows:

Noncurrent

Balance liabilities dueBalance

June 1,2016 lncreases Reductions May 31,2017 w¡thin one vear

Noncurrent

liabilities

$ 14,100,000 $

135.242

6,735,380 $

258,870

1,435,000

33,117

$ 19,400,380

360.995

$ 1 ,924,138
31,707

1,955,845

588,31 3

755,333

2,978,624

$ 17,476,242

329.288

14,235,242

8,652,147

3,437,003

2,284,917

6,994,250

817,943

2,900,221

1,334,234

1,468,117

1,065,622

409,289

640,527

2,547,836

50,229

19,761,375

8,404,468

5,927,935

2,978,624

48,794,381
-0-

17,805,530

7,816,155

5,172,602

8,912,781

48,794,381

14,948,015 5,798,471 11,833,705 8,912,781

43,324,883 8,017,334

50,229

$ 86,932,436 $ 453 $ 18,015,325 779,564 $ 6,278,115 $ 88,501,449$ 94,

$ 8,740,535 $

26.511

2,499,620

96,070

$ 1,100,535 $ 10,139,620

7,202 1 1 5,379

2,595,690 1,107,737

87,781 66,217

362,572 755,230

10,254,999

194,396

504,570

355 .482 147,190 3,224,845

$ 1,115,862

8,656

$ 9,023,758

06.723

8,767,046

172,832

897,228

3,016,553

1,124,518

13,608

9,1 30,481

180,788

504,570

3,224,845

$ 3,401,525long{erm activities _$_1_2,853,659_
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3. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D. INDEBTEDNESS (continued)

CHANGES lN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

The liabilities for compensated absences, the proportionate share of net pension liabilities, other
postemployment benefits payable and general obligation bonds payable will be liquidated
through future budgetary appropriation in the fund that gave rise to the liability. The liability for
claims and judgments payable will be liquidated through the lnternal Service Fund or General
Fund depending on the nature of the case and tax certioraris payable will be liquidated through
the General Fund.

E. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Plan Description

The Village participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System
('ERS") and the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System ('PFRS") which
are collectively referred to as New York State and Local Retirement Systems (the "Systems").
These are cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement systems. The System provides retirement
benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of the System is held in the
New York State Common Retirement Fund (the "Fund"), which was established to hold all net
assets and record changes in plan net position allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the
State of New York serves as the trustee of the Fund and is the administrative head of the
System. The Comptroller is an elected official determined in a direct statewide election and
serves a four year term. System benefits are established under the provisions of the New York
State Retirement and Social Security Law ("NYSRSSL"). Once a public employer elects to
participate in the System, the election is irrevocable.

The New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship
and plan benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future
members only by enactment of a State statute. The Village also participates in the Public
Employees' Group Life lnsurance Plan (GLIP), which provides death benefits in the form of life
insurance. The System is included in the State's financial report as a pension trust fund. That
report, including information with regard to benefits provided, may be found at
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York State
and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, NY 12244.

Benefits Provided

The System provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.

Tiers 1 and 2

Eligibility: Tier 1 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans,
must be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit, there is no minimum service
requirement. Tier 2 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans,
must have five years of service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement
benefit. The age at which full benefits may be collected for Tier 1 and Tier 2, is 55 and 62,
respectively.
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3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Benefits Provided (continued)

Tiers 1 and 2(continued)

Benefit calculation: Generally, the benefit is 1.67o/o of final average salary for each year of
service if the member retires with less than 20 years. lf the member retires with 20 or more years
of service, the benefit is 2"/o of final average salary for each year of service. Tier 2 members with
five or more years of seruice can retire as early as age 55 with reduced benefits. Tier 2 members
age 55 or older with 30 or more years of service can retire with no reduction in benefits. As a
result of Article 19 of the RSSL, Tier 1 and 2 members who worked continuously from April 1,

1999 through October 1, 2000 received an additional month of service credit for each year of
credited seruice they have at retirement, up to a maximum of 24 additional months.

Final average salary is the average of the wages earned in the three highest consecutive years.
For Tier 1 members who joined on or after June 17,1971, each year of final average salary is
limited to no more than 20"/" of the previous year. For Tier 2 members, each year of final
average salary is limited to no more lhan 20"/" of the average of the previous two years.

Tiers 3, 4, and 5

Eligibility: Tier 3 and 4 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement
plans, must have five years of service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement
benefit. Tier 5 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans, must
have ten years of service and be at least 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit. The full
benefit age for Tiers 3, 4 and 5 is 62.

Benefit calculation: Generally, the benefit is 1.67"/o of final average salary for each year of
service if the member retires with less than 20 years. lf a member retires with between 20 and
30 years of service, the benefit is 2"/o of final average salary for each year of service. lf a
member retires with more than 30 years of service, an additional benefit oÍ 1.57o of final average
salary is applied for each year of service over 30 years. Tier 3 and 4 members with five or more
years of service and Tier 5 members with ten or more years of service can retire as early as age
55 with reduced benefits. Tier 3 and 4 members age 55 or older with 30 or more years of service
can retire with no reduction in benefits.

Final average salary is the average of the wages earned in the three highest consecutive years.
For Tier 3, 4, and 5 members, each year of final average salary is limited to no more than 10%
of the average of the previous two years.

Tier 6

Eligibility: Tier 6 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans,
must have ten years of service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement
benefit. The full benefit age for Tier 6 members is age 63 for ERS members and 62 tor PFRS
members.

Benefit calculation: Generally, the benefit is 1.67"/" of final average salary for each year of
service if the member retires wíth less than 20 years. lf a member retires with 20 years of
seruice, the benefit is 1.75o/o of final average salary for each year of service. lf a member retires
with more than 20 years of service, an additional benefit ol 2o/" of final average salary is applied
for each year of service over 20 years. Tier 6 members with ten or more years of seruice can
retire as early as age 55 with reduced benefits.
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3. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Benef its Provided (continued)

Tier 6 (continued)

Final average salary is the average of the wages earned in the five highest consecutive years.
For Tier 6 members, each year of final average salary is limited to no more than 10% of the
average of the previous four years.

Special Plans

The 25-Year Plans allow a retirement after 25 years of service with a benefit of one-half of final
average salary, and the 2O-Year Plans allow a retirement after 20 years of service with a benefit
of one-half of final average salary. These plans are available to certain PFRS members, sheriffs,
and correction officers.

Ordinary Disability Benefits

Generally, ordinary disability benefits, usually onethird of salary, are provided to eligible
members after ten years of service; in some cases, they are provided after five years of seruice.

Disability Retirement Benefits

Disability retirement benefits are available to ERS and PFRS members unable to perform their
job duties because of permanent physical or mental incapacity. There are three general types of
disability benefits: ordinary, performance of duty and accidental disability benefits. Eligibility,
benefit amounts, and other rules such as any offsets of other benefits depend on a member's
tier, years of service, and plan.

Ordinary Death Benefits

Death benefits are payable upon the death, before retirement, of a member who meets eligibility
requirements as set forth by law. The first $50,000 of an ordinary death benefit is paid in the
form of group term life insurance. The benefit is generally three times the member's annual
salary. For most members, there is also a reduced post-retirement ordinary death benefit
available.

P ost- Reti re m e nt Be n ef it I n c reases

A cost-of-living adjustment is provided annually to: 1) all pensioners who have attained age 62
and have been retired for five years; 2) all pensioners who have attained age 55 and have been
retired for ten years; 3) all disability pensioners, regardless of age, who have been retired for five
years; 4) ERS recipients of an accidental death benefit, regardless of age, who have been
receiving such benefit for five years; and 5) the spouse of a deceased retiree receiving a lifetime
benefit under an option elected by the retiree at retirement. An eligible spouse is entitled to one-
half the cost-of-living adjustment amount that would have been paid to the retiree when the
retiree would have met the eligibility criteria. This cost-of-living adjustment is a percentage of the
annual retirement benefit of the eligible member as computed on a base benefit amount not to
exceed $18,000 of the annual retirement benefit. The cost-of-living percentage shall be 51o/oof
the annual consumer price index as published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor, but cannot be less
than 17" or exceed 3"/".
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3. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Contributions

The Systems are noncontributory except for employees who joined the New York State and
Local Employees' Retirement System after July 27, 1976 who contribute 3% of their salary for
the first ten years of membership; and employees who joined on or after January 1, 2010 (ERS)
or January 9,2010 (PFRS), who generally contribute 3% of their salary for the entire length of
service. For Tier 6 members, the contribution rate varies from 3% To 6'/" depending on salary.
Generally, Tier 5 and 6 members are required to contribute for all years of service. Under the
authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller annually certifies the actuarially determined rates
expressly used in computing the employers' contributions based on salaries paid during the
Systems'fiscal year ending March 31.

The required contributions, for the primary government, for the current year and two preceding
years were:

Amount

Annual Required Contribution - ERS

Credits &
Miscellaneous Prepayment
Adjustments Discount

Total
Payment

2017 $
2016
201 5

2,138,442
2,534,997
2,774,380

Amount

7,328 $
(37,618)
(97,910)

(18,009) $
(22,813)
(24,967)

2,127,761
2,474,566
2,651,503

$

Annual Required Gontribution - PFRS

Credits &
Miscellaneous
Adjustments

Prepayment
Discount

Total
Payment

2017 $
2016
2015

2,461,617
2,461,576
2,902,432

-0- $
818,824
(21,770)

(20,730) $
(22,152)
(26,120)

2,440,887
3,258,248
2,854,542

$

The Village is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The actual contributions
were equal to 100% of the actuarially required amounts. The credits and miscellaneous
adjustments represent modifications made by the ERS and PFRS to the prior year's
contributions due to differences between estimated and actual salaries for the plan year.

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows and lnflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

At May 31 , 2017, the Village reported a liability of $9,417,351 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability for the Systems. The net pension liability was measured as of March 31,
2017 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of April 1,2016. The Village's proportion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection of the Village projected contributions of all participating members,
actuarially determined.
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E. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows and lnflows of Resources Related
to Pensions (continued)

Below is the proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Systems and the related
employer allocation percentage as of March 31, 2017 (measurement date).

Net Pension
Liability

Allocation of the
System's Total Net

Pension Liability

Change in Allocation of the
System's Total Net

Pension Liability since
Prior Measurement Date

ERS
PFRS

$ 4,930,894 *

4,486,457
o.0524775%
0.21645970/"

o.oo295780/o

0.01819820/o

*The Village's portion of the net pension liability for ERS in the amount of $4,930,894 is reported
in the governmental activities and business{ype activities in the amount of $4,426,324 and
$504,570, respectively. The Village's net poftion of the net pension liability for PFRS was
reported in the governmental activities.

There was no significant change in the Village's proportion from March 31, 2016 to March 31,
2017.

For the year ended May 31 , 2017, the Village recognized pension expense of $5,885,829 in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, of which $5,534,126 was related to
governmental activities and $351,703 was for business-type activities.

At May 31,2017, deferred outflows of resources related to the pension were reported from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Resources
ERS PFRS

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan inwstments

Changes in propoftion and differences between the Village's
contributions and propo¡lionate share of contributions

Village's contribution subsequent to the measurement date

Total Deferred Outflow - Pension

$ 123,564 $

1,684,576

588,546

2,210,289

984,901

82,713

294,804

670,046

1,847,835

348,288

$ 3,170,558 $ 5,665,004

At May 31, 2017, deferred inflows of resources related to the pension were reported from the
following sources:

Deferred lnflows of Resources
ERS PFRS

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in proportion and differences between the Village's
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Total Deferred lnflow - Pension

$ 748,785 $ 775,160

161,409 67,667
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E. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Exoense. and Deferred Outflows and lnflows of Resources Related
to Pensions (continued)

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended May 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows
and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Gorærnmental Activities
ERS PFRS

Plan year ending March 31, 2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

Measurement date

Actuarial wluation date

lnterest rate

Salary increases

Decrement tables

lnflation rate

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017

April 1 ,2016 April 1 ,2016

7.Oo/o 7.OYo

3.8o/o 4.5o/"

April 1, 2010 - April 1, 2010 -
March 31,2015 March 31,2015

System's Experience System's Experience

2.5o/o 2.5o/o

$ 902,837 $
902,837
835,O27

(675,141)
-0-

1,342,429
1,342,429
1,292,419

290,271
206,341

$ 1,965,560 $ 4,473,889

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of the measurement date of March 31, 2017 was determined by
using an actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2016, with update procedures used to roll fonivard the
total pension liability to the measurement date. The actuarial valuations used the following
actuarial assumptions:

ERS PFRS

Annuitant mortality rates are based on the April 1 , 2O1O - March 31, 2015 System's experience
with adjustments for mortality improvements based on the Society of Actuaries'Scale MP-2014.

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1 , 2016 valuation are based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the per¡od April 1 , 2010 - March 31 , 2015.

The long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected return, net of investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are comb¡ned to produce the long{erm expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.
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E. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (continued)

Asset Class

Domestic equity
lnternational equity
Private equity
Real estate
Absolute return strategies
Oppoft unístic portfolio
Real assets
Bonds and mortgages
Cash
lnflation indexed bonds

Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
target asset allocation as of March 31,2017 are summarized below:

Target
Allocation

Long-term
Expected Rate

of Return

36.Oy"
14.Oyo
1O.Oo/"

1O.Oo/o

2.O"/"
3.Oo/"
3-O"/"

17.Oyo
1.OY"
4.OY"

4.55o/"
6.35"/"
7.75y"
5.AOy"
4.OOo/o

5.89"/"
5.54"/"
1.31o/o

-O.25o/o
'l .5O"/"

1OO.Oo/"

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.0% for the System. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from
plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions,
the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.

Sensitivitv of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilitv to the Discount Rate
Assumption

The following presents the Village's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.Oo/o, as well as what the Village's proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1"/o

Decrease
(6.0%)

Current
Assumption

(7.O./")

1o/o

lncrease
(8.0%)

Village's proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset)for:

ERS
PFRS

$ 15,748,318
12,718,845

$ 4,930,894
4,486,457

$ (4,215,206)
(2,418,501)
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E. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Sensitivitv of the nate Share of the Net Pension Liabilitv to the Discount Rate
Assumption (continued)

The components of the current year net pension liability of the employers participating in the
Systems' as of March 31, 2017 were as follows (in thousands):

ERS PFRS

Valuation date
Employers' total pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position

April 1 ,2016
$ 177,400,586

(168,004,363)

April 1 ,2016
$ gl ,670,483

(29,597,831)

Employers' net pension liability $ 9,396,223 $ 2,072,652

Ratio of plan fiduciary net position to the
Employers'total pension liability 947)yo 93.46"/"

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the System's
separately issued financial statements.

F. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

All Village employees may participate in the Deferred Compensation Plan for Employees of the
Village of Garden City (the "Plan"), a defined contribution plan. The Plan was created in
accordance with Section 457 of the lnternal Revenue Code (lRC) and is subject to the
provisions of the rules and regulations of the New York State Deferred Compensation Board
(the "Board"), as amended. The Deferred Compensation Committee is responsible for oversight
of the Plan and determines the appropriateness of the Plan's investment offerings, monitors
investment pedormance. The Village is the plan sponsor.

Each year, participants may contribute a minimum of $260 and up to 100% of includible
compensation for the plan year, as defined in the Plan. Participants who have attained age 50
before the end of the plan year are eligible to make catch-up contributions. An additional catch-
up is allowed for previous missed contributions for participants who are within three years of
retirement. Participants may also contribute amounts representing distributions from other
qualified plans. Each participant's account is credited with the participant's contribution and
allocation of the Plan's earnings, and charged with an allocation of administrative expenses.
Allocations are based on participant earnings or account balances, as defined by the Plan. The
benefit to which a participant is entitled is the benefit that can be provided from the participant's
vested account. Participants are immediately vested in their contributions plus actual earnings
thereon. The amount of participant contributions, including amounts rolled over from other
qualified plans, was $1 ,502,916 for the Plan year ended December 31, 2016.

On termination of service due to death, disability, retirement, or for other reasons, a participant
may elect to receive either a lump-sum amount equal to the value of the participant's vested
interest in his or her account, periodic payments or annual installments over a certain period, as
defined by the Plan. Participants are eligible for in-service withdrawals for an unforeseeable
emergency subject to the provisions of the lRC.

Complete financial statements of the Plan can be obtained from the lncorporated Village of
Garden City Business Office, 351 Stewart Avenue, Garden City, NY 11530.
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G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

472

The Village, a participant in a single-employer defined benefit plan, has collective bargaining
contracts with four associations a) Civil Service Employees Association, lnc., b) Civil Service
Employees Association, lnc.'s Supervisor Unit, c) Garden City Police Benevolent Association
and d) Professional Firefighters Association of Nassau County. These contracts will be
renegotiated at various times in the future.

The Village, in accordance with its contract with Civil Service Employees Association, lnc. and
Civil Service Employees Association, lnc.'s Supervisor Unit will pay 90% of the premium costs
for medical insurance coverage (currently provided by the New York State Empire Plan and HIP)
at retirement, provided the employee retired after June 1, 2001 and had been employed by the
Village for at least fifteen years. The Village will pay 90% of the individual and 75"/" of the family
premium costs for employees hired prior to June 1, 2001 who retire after June 1, 2001 and have
been employed by the Village for at least ten years but less than fifteen years.

The Village, in accordance with its contract with Garden City Police Benevolent Association and
Professional Firefighters Association of Nassau County, will pay 100% of the premium costs for
medical insurance coverage (currently provided by the New York State Empire Plan and HIP) at
retirement, provided the employee had been employed by the Village for at least ten years.

Employees not covered by collective bargaining agreements that retire on or after June 1 ,2012,
with at least 10 years of service, are entitled to the lesser of (i) 85% of the cost of individual
coverage and 75"/" of the additional cost of family medical insurance coverage (currently the
New York State Empire Plan or an equivalent dollar contribution to an optional benefit plan) or
(ii) the amount being paid for active Executive staff members medical insurance. Currently, the
Village pays 85% of individual or family medical insurance coverage (currently the New York
State Empire Plan or an equivalent dollar contribution to optional benefit plan) for active
employees.

All retirees are eligible for Medicare Part B reimbursement based on yearly income if they are
over the age of sixty-five. Upon death of a retiree, the Village will cease to pay any portion of the
health insurance premium for the surviving spouse, however the spouse is still eligible for
Medicare Part B reimbursement.

The Village, as administrator of the plan, does not issue a separate report.

The number of participants as of June 1, 2016, the effective date of the most recent OPEB
valuation, is as follows:

Primary Governmental Business-type
Government Activities Activities

Active employees
Retired employees *

Total 36

.This includes 16 surviving spouses

There have been no significant changes in the number of employees or the type of coverage
since that date.

7
29

243
229

236
200

436
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G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Fundinq Policy

Primary
Go\ernment

Actr¡arial Accrued Liability (AAL)

Acti\e employees

Retired employees

Total Actuar¡al Accrued Liability (AAL)

Actuarial ralue of plan assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)

Funded Ratio

Annual cowred payroll

UAAL as a percentage of co\êred payroll

$

104,972,108

-0-

The Village currently pays for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Annual Other Postemployment Benefit Cost and Net Oblioation

For the year ended May 31 , 2017, the Village's annual other postemployment benefits cost
(expense) was $8,372,816 of which $8,017,334 was related to governmental activities and
$355,482 was related to businesstype activities. The annual expense, inclusive of current health
insurance premiums, totaled $2,695,026 for retirees and their beneficiaries, of which $2,547,836
was related to governmental activities and 9147,190 was related to business-type activities. The
result was an increase in the other postemployment benefits liability ol $5,677,790 of which
$5,469,498 was related to governmental activities and $208,292 was related to business-type
activities for the year ended May 31 , 2017.

Benefit Obliqations and Normal Cost

Gor¡ernmental
Activities

Business-type
Act¡vities

49,068,482

55,903,626

47,074,831

53,046,993

1,993,651

2,856,633

$ $

100,121 ,824 4,850,284

-0- -0-

$ 104,972,108 $ 100J21 ,824 $ 4,850,284

0.00%

20,189,794

519.93%

0.00olo 0.00%

$ nla** nla..

nla**n/a**

** lnformation was onlyarailable forthe total primarygovernment

The Village's annual other postemployment benefit cost is calculated based on the annual
required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability for the Village for the year ended May 31 ,2017 amounted to
$104,972,108.
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G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Annual Other Postemployment Benefit Cost and Net Oblioation (continued)

The following table shows the components of the Village's other postemployment benefits
liability:

Level Dollar Amortization Method
Calcu lation of ARC under the Entrv Aoe Normal Method*

Primary
Go\ernment

Go\€rnmental
Activities

Business-q/pe
Activities

Normal cost

Amortization of unfunded actuarial liability
(UAAL) o\€r 30 y€ars

lnterest

Annual required contribution (AFìC)

lnterest on net OPEB obligation

Adjustmentto ÆìC

OPEB Cost

Less: Contribution for year ended t\ilay 31 , 2017

¡ncrease ¡n olher postem ployrn ent benefits liabil ity

Other postem ployrn ent benefits liab¡ lity at [¡ay 31, 20 I 6

Other postem ploym ent benefits liabillty at tvhy 31 , 201 7

Percent of annual OPEB cost contributed

Actuarial Accrued Liability
NormalCost

Annual OPEB
Cost *

208,292

3,016,5s3

$ 52,019,226 $ 48,794,381 $ 3,224,845

32.190k 31 .780/o 41 .41V"

$ 2,908,407

5,838,273

349,868

2,791,060

5,568,511

334,383

$ 117,347$

269,762

15,485

9,096,548

1,853,657

(2,577,389)

8,693,954

1,732,995

(2,409,615)

402,594

120,662

(167,774)

8,372,816 8,017,334

2,547,838

355,482

2 147 190

5,677,790

46,341,436

5,469,498

43,324,883

*As of June 1 , 2016, the Village elected to change the actuarial cost method from the projected
unit credit to the entry age normal method. The other postemployment benefits liability at
May 31 ,2016 was based on the projected unit credit method. The most significant changes in
the other postemployment benefit calculation as of June 1 ,2016 from the change in the actuarial
cost method are as follows:

Projected Unit Entry Age
Credit Normal

$111,749,599
2,605,342

$104,972,108
2,908,408

Funded Status and Funding Proqress

The percentage contributed, as it relates to the Village, for the current year and the preceding
two years werel

Annual
Contribution Made

Percentage
Contributed

Net OPEB
Obligation

May 31 ,2017
May 31 ,2016
May 31 ,2015

8,372,816
7,726,682
7,814,693

2,695.026
2,371,585
2,179,324
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G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Funded Status and Fundino Proqress (continued)

*As of June 1 ,2016, the Village elected to change the actuarial cost method from the projected
unit credit to the entry age normal method. The annual OPEB cost as of May 31, 2016 and
2015 was based on the projected unit credit method. The May 31, 2017 annual OPEB cost was
based on the entry age normal method.

The projected funded status of the plan as of June 1,2016 is as follows:

Actuarial

Æcrued Liability ÆtuarialValue of

(AAL) Plan Æsets

Unfunded

Actuarial

Accrued Liability

(UAAL) Funded Ratio

UML as a

Percentage of

Covered Payroll Covered Payroll

PrimaryGovernment $104,972,108 $ -O- $104,972,108 0.00o/o $ 20,189,794 51 9,93%

The required schedule of funding progress can be found immediately following the notes to the
financial statements, in required supplementary information, and presents trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The projection of future benefits for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, retirement age, and
healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of a plan and the
employer's annual required contributions are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between
the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term liability in actuarial
accrued liabilities, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

ln the June 1 , 2016 actuarial valuation, the liabilities were computed using the entry age normal
actuarial cost method and level dollar amortization method over an open 30 year amortization
period to amortize the initial unfunded liability. The actuarial assumptions utilized a 4.0o/o interest
rate and an initial healthcare cost trend rate of 5.3"/" - 6.75% (based on age) for medical and
10.0%-1 1.5"/" tor prescription costs with an ultimate healthcare inflation rate of 5.0% after seven
years. Both rates include a 4.0"/" inflation rate and a 2.5"/" wage inflation assumption.

H. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Village employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn compensatory absences in
varying amounts. ln the event of termination or upon retirement, an employee is entitled to
payment for accumulated vacation, personal leave and sick leave at various rates subject to
certain maximum limitations.
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H. GOMPENSATED ABSENCES (continued)

Estimated vacation, sick leave, and compensatory absences accumulated by governmentalfund
type employees have been recorded in the Statements of Net Position. Vested vacation, personal

leave and sick leave accumulated by business type employees have been recorded in proprietary

funds as a liability and expense. Payment of vacation time and sick leave is dependent upon
many factors, therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However,

management believes that sufficient resources will be made available for the payments of
vacation, sick leave, and compensatory absences when such payments become due. As of
May 31 , 2017, the value of the Village's accumulated vacation time and sick leave for
governmental and business-type activities was $8,598,864, of which $2,082,037 was included in

the restricted fund balance of the General Fund. The legally adopted budget for year ended

May 31 , 2018 includes a designated amount of $900,000 for compensated absences, which is
reported in the assigned fund balance of the General Fund as of May 31, 2017, however will be

reclassified to restricted fund balance as of June 1 ,2017 .

4. GOMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. RISK MANAGEMENT

ln common with other municipalities, the Village receives numerous notices of claims. The
Village established a self-insurance risk management program for general liability and

workêrs' compensation claims which is accounted for in the lnternal Service Fund. With

respect to those insurance needs which are being self-insured, the Village has umbrella
policies which provide for (1) $31,000,000 of coverage per year for general liability claims

which on a case by case basis are more than $200,000 ($1,100,000 in the aggregate) and

(2) $2,000,000 of coverage per year for workers' compensation claims filed prior to August 1,

2011 which, on a case by case basis, are more than $400,000 with the exception of policemen

and firemen claims which are $500,000. The Village purchases an insurance policy which

covers all workers'compensation claims incurred afterAugust 1,2011. There have been no

significant reductions in insurance coverage as compared to the prior year, and there were no

settlements in excess of insurance coverage over the last three years.

The actuarially determined lnternal Service Fund liabilities are reported without a discount

when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably

estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported.

The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends
on many complex factors, such as, inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards'
Accordiñgly, claims liabilities are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation,

take recent claim settlement trends (including the frequency and amount of the claims), and

other economic and social factors. The estimate of the claims liability also includes amounts

for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to the specific claims and other claim

adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated to specific claims.
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A. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The New York State Workers' Compensation Board, as mandated by the Business Relief Act,
which was enacted as part of the 2013 - 2014 New York State budget, created a single
assessment methodology to fund the New York State workers' compensation system. The
new assessment methodology which was established on November 1,2013 and became
effective on January 1, 2014 has reduced total assessment costs for all New York State
employers. Subsequent to January 1, 2014 assessments are no longer calculated based upon
indemnity loss payments but are now based on premium (or premium equivalent) and plans in
runoff (such as the Village of Garden City Workers Compensation Self-lnsured Plan) will no
longer be assessed.

B. SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM

At May 31,2017, the lnternal Service Fund had a fund balance surplus of $2,629,626. The
Enterprise Funds'portion of the lnternal Service Fund's surplus is $193,049 and has been
included in the internal service balance in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

The schedule below presents the changes in claim reserves for general liability and workers'
compensation for the years ended May 31 , 2017 and 2016:

Workers'
Compensation

General
Liabilitv

2017 2016 2017 201 6

Unpaid Claims as of June 1't $ 1,387,396 $ 1,882,010 $ 2,049,607 $ 2,663,263

lncurred Claims:
Provision for insured events

of the current fiscal year

lncrease (decrease) in net
Provision for insured events

of prior fiscal years

Total lncurred Claims and
Claim Adjustments

Payments of:
Claims during the current year

-0-* -0-* 445,377 517,865

351,497 (251 .459) 1196 ,653) 1908 ,818)

351.497 eü.459\ 248.724 (390.953)

ß22.782\ (243,155) (86,50n e22.703)

Unpaid Claims as of May 31't $1-416*U-1 $--1J8ZJ96 $2,U1-W $-2J49S02

.The Village began purchasing workers' compensation insurance policies during the fiscal year
ended May 31 , 2012 in order to minimize costs (the insurance policies will provide coverage for
workers'compensation claims occurring after August 1,2011) and therefore there is no
provision for insured workers' compensation events in the current or prior fiscal year.
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B. SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM (continued)

During the year ended May 31 , 2017, lhe lnternal Service Fund charged the following
premiums:

Primarv Government:

General Fund
Library Fund
Water Fund
Pool Fund
Tennis Fund

$ 3,681,074
177,232
21 8,1 53

77,306
10,232

Total Premiums $____4-L63p9Z

C. LITIGATION

The Village has been the defendant in an action filed in federal district court in 2005 entitled
MHANY Management et al. v. lncorporated Village of Garden City, et al. The plaintiffs alleged,
among other things, that the Village engaged in discrimination in connection with the 2004
rezoning of certain parcels of property owned by Nassau County and used principally as the
headquarters for the Nassau County Department of Social Services. The case was tried in June
2013 and on December 6, 2013 the U.S. District Court ruled that the Village had violated the Fair
Housing Act as well as 42 U.S. Code 51981 and $1983 and the Equal Protection Clause of the
Fourteenth Amendment. The plaintiffs were not awarded monetary damages. However, among
other things, the Court directed the Village: (1) not to engage in discriminatory conduct in
connection with residential real property-related matters, (2) to enact a fair housing resolution
and (3) to retain a fair housing compliance officer to, among other things, oversee the Village's
compliance with the terms of the judgment. As the prevailing party, plaintiffs have filed a motion
seeking to recover approximately $5.6 million in attorneys' fees and costs, which amount is
subject to increase as the case continues. The Village is disputing the amount sought by
plaintiffs. On September 11 , 2014, the court granted the Village's motion to defer ruling on the
plaintiffs' attorneys' fees and costs request pending the outcome of an appeal that the Village
has filed of the trial court decision with the 2nd Circuit U.S. Court of Appeals. The appeal was
orally argued on May 29,2015. The Second Circuit in a March 26,2016 decision remanded the
issue of "disparate impacf'to the District Court and affirmed the District Court's findings on the
remaining causes of action. On September 19, 2017, the district court issued a ruling with
regard to the remanded disparate impact issue and held that the zoning ultimately enacted by
the Village had a disparate impact on minorities under the revised standard set forth by the
Second Circuit. As of October 2017, the district court's decision with regard to attorneys'fees
and costs remains deferred and it is unclear at this time when the court will determine this issue.

The Village believes that it has insurance coverage for such award. However, the insurance
carrier has not conceded that such coverage would apply to the disparate treatment claim since
it involves intentional acts and has reserved its rights. ln the event that after plaintiffs are
awarded attorneys'fees the carrier denies coverage, the Village intends to take all reasonable
steps to enforce payment. For the foregoing reasons, it is not possible to determine the potential
loss, if any, to the Village as a result of this litigation. However, in an effort to be conservative,
the Village included an estimated amount in the claims and judgments payable related to this
case in the government-wide statement of net position.
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4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

D. GENERAL LITIGATION

Consistent with other municipalities, the Village has been named a defendant in various legal
actions in the course of ordinary operations. The Village has accrued for all estimated and
probable contingent losses. The Village primarily funds settlements of legal actions through
current operating funds; however, the Village has the ability to fund settlements through bonding
if deemed necessary. An estimate cannot be made on certain of the legal actions that have
possible unfavorable outcome against the Village. ln the opinion of the Village's management,
the potential loss on all claims will not materially affect the Village's financial position.

E. TAX CERTIORARI PROCEED¡NGS

From time to time, the Village is involved in tax certiorari proceedings under which taxpayers
seek reduction in the assessed value of property upon which taxes are measured. A reduction in
assessed valuation may result in a refund of real property taxes previously paid by the claimant.
The amount refunded to Village taxpayers as a result of tax certiorari proceedings was $640,527
fortheyearended 2017.

F. CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER CAPITAL ACQUISITION COMMITMENTS

Construction in progress commitments for equipment purchases and other capital acquisition
commitments amounting to $3,472,790 are assigned in the Capital Projects Fund.

G. OTHER COMM¡TMENTS

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal and state government. Any disallowed claims, including
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any,
of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time,
although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

5. NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following Statements:

Statement No. 73 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assefs That Are
Not Within the Scope of GASB 68 - and amendments to Ceftain Provisions of GASB 67 and 68"Ihe
objective is to clarify the existing guidance as well as establishes new requirements for pensions not
covered by Statement No. 67 and No. 68. The requirements of this Statement that address
employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not within the
scope of Statement 68 are effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2016. The remaining requirements were effective in the current year (see Note 1 .H).

Statement No. 75, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions," which outlines reporting by governments that provide OPEB to their employees and for
governments that finance OPEB for employees of other governments. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15,2017.

Statement No. 80, "Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units - an Amendment of
Statement No.14," the objective of which is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial
statement presentation requirements for certain component units. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2016.
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5. NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued)

Statement No. 82, "Pensio:n /ssues - an Amendment of Statemenfs No. 67, 68, and 73," The
objective of which is to address issues regarding (a) the presentation of payroll-related measures in
required supplementary information, (b) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations
from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (c) the
classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution
requirements. The requirements of the Statement are effective for repofting beginning after June 15,
2016, except for the requirements for selection of assumptions in a certain circumstance in which an
employer's pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer's most recent fiscal
year end. ln that circumstance, the requirements for the selection of assumptions are effective for
that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on
or after June 1 5, 2017.

Statement No. 84, "Fiduciary Activities," the objective of which is to improve guidance regarding the
identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

Statement No.85, "Omnibus 2017,' the objective of which is to address practice issues that have
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement
specifically addresses issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement
and application and postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB). The requirements of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15,2017.

Statement No. 86, 'Certain Debt Extinguishment /ssues,"the objective of which is to is to improve
consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing
guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing
resources - resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt-are placed in an irrevocable trust
for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial
reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for
debt that is defeased in substance. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15,2017.

Statement No. 87, "Leases," the objective of which is to is to improve accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor to recognize a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

The Village is currently evaluating the impact of the above pronouncements.
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REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER THAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual- General Fund

Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB)

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Schedule of Pension Contributions

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY ¡NFORMATION

The budgets are adopted on a basis of accounting consistent with
GAAP, except that appropriations authorized for the current year
are increased by the amount of encumbrances carried fonruard
from the prior years. ln the event that actual revenues received
exceed budgeted amounts, additional budgetary appropriations
are made. The capital projects are budgeted on a project or grant
basis.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended May 31,2017

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)
REVENUES

Real PropertyTaxes
Real property taxes

Total Real Property Taxes

Other Real Property Tax ltems
Payment in lieu of taxes
lnterest and penalties on real property tax

Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

Non-Property Tax ltems
Public utilities gross receipts tax
County sales tax
Franchise fees

704,046
119 105

808,607 808,607 823 151

$ 49,021,000

49,02't,000

$ 49,021,000

49,021,000

024,330 $ 3,330$ 49,

49,024,330 3,330

703,207
'105,400

703,207
't05,400

839
13,705

14,544

675,000
62,000

320,000

675,000
62,000

320,000

568,572
62,1 59

344,306

(106,428)
159

24,306

Total Non-Property Tax ltems 1.057 ,000 1,057,000 975,037 (81,963)

Departmental lncome
Charges for tax advertising
Safety inspection fees
Parking lots and garages
Zoning fees
Dump permits
Sewer charges
Refuse and garbage fees
Park and recreational charges
Public works service
Health fees
Planning commission fees
Architectural design review fees
Police impound fees

1,600

917,500
202,700
37,500

5,000
2,700

150,000
761,763
225,000

7,000
2,000

30,000
1,300

1,600

917,500
202,700
37,500

5,000
2,700

150,000
761,763
225,000

7,000
2,000

30,000

't,750

1,088,375
221,115

52,300
6,810
2,646

150,520

713,908
468,060

5,870
4,500

50,250
6,900

150
170,875

18,415

14,800
1 ,810

(54)

520
(47,855)
243,060

(1 ,130)
2,500

20,250
5,600300

Total Departmental lncome 2,344,063 2.344,063 2,773,004 428,941

lntergovernmental Charges
Fire protection services
Sewer services

Use of Money and Property
lnterest and earnings
Rental real property

Total lntergovernmental Charges 4,500

4,150
350

4,150
350

90

345
(4,060)

(s)

4,500 435 (4,065)

79,500 79,500
33,732 33,732

23,852
33,732

(55,648)
-0-

113,232 (55,648)Total Use of Money and Property
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CIry
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended May 31,2017

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

(continued)

REVENUES

Licenses and Permits
Business and occupational licenses
Dog license fund apportionment
Permits

Total Licenses and Permits

Fines and Forfeitures
Fines and forfeited bail

Forfeiture of deposits

Total Fines and Forfeitures

Special Assessments
Special assessment - parking lot

Total Special Assessments

Sales of Property and Gompensation for Loss
Minor sales - other
Sales of equipment
lnsurance recoveries
Other compensation for losses

Total Sales of Property
and Compensation for Loss

Miscellaneous Local Sources
Refund of prior year expenses
Gifts and donations
lnterfund revenues
Unclassified revenues

Total Miscellaneous Local Sources

State and Local Aid
Per capita
Mortgage tax
Youth programs
Consolidated local street

and highway improvement aid
Special state grant

Other

Total State and Local Aid

FederalAid
Police grants

Total Federal Aid

Total Revenues

1,000 1,389,693 1,547,485

3,300
4,607

200,980

3,300
4,607

200,980

1 ,510
7,Q22

359,201

(1,7e0)

2,415
158,221

208,887 208,887 367 733 158,846

1,350,000
1,000

1,350,000
39,693

1,524,267
23,218

174,267
(16,475)

1,35 157 792

239,733 239,733 239 733 -0-

239,733 239,733 239,733 -0-

21,000
20,000

200,000
25,000

21,000
20,000

200,000
25,000

58,303
58,588

244,695
7,957

37,303
38,588
44,695

(17,043\

266,000 266,000 369,543 103 543

20,000 32,275 34,023
2s,000
20,000

1,748
25,000

-0-20,000
10,000

20,000
10,000 31 716 21 716

50,000 62,275 110 739

207,449
868,278

3,162

493,776
244,500

48,464

207,449
500,000

5,900

457,663

207,449
500,000

5,900

457,663

-0-

368,278
(2,738)

36,113
244,500

37,200 37,200 42 718 5 518

1,208,212 1,208,212 1,859,883 651 671

28,417 28,417

-0- -0- 28,417 28,417

$ 56,672,234 $ 56,723,202 $ Se, $ t,453,872
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended May 31,2017

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)
(Continued)

EXPENDITURES

General Government Support
Board of Trustees:

Equipment
Other expenditures

Village Justice:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Clerk-Treasurer:
Personal services
Equipment
Other expenditures

Purchasing:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Assessment:
Other expenditures

Discount on Taxes
Law:

Other expenditures
Personnel:

Personal services
Other expenditures

Engineer:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Elections:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Buildings:
Personal services
Other expenditures

St. Paul School:
Other expenditures

Central Garage:
Personal services
Equipment
Other expenditures

Central Printing and Mailing:
Other expenditures

Central Data Processing:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Municipal Association Dues
Refunds of Fìeal Property Taxes

$ 9,200

305,974
42,26Q

1,091,323
10,000

415,286

209,562
5,750

47,400
30,000

1,354,393

100,297
47,125

244,845
11,550

1,075
2,850

84,095
229,095

10,000

591,751
10,000

157,300

28,000

102,390
85,472
24,000

2,284,917

31,132 $
9,200

31,132 $
5,018

-0-

4,182

23,467
10,756

197,662
6,076

151,146

-0-

1,783

335
-0-

442,185

-0-

4,973

11 ,173
2,921

235
1,477

-0-

2,714

4,400

5,727
74

15,764

910

128
14,909

1,634
1,629,390

(Continued)

$

328,205
42,260

1 ,126,598
10,000

515,339

213,965
5,348

47,400
31,972

1,444,394

101,940
45,482

292,172
11,900

1,075
2,850

88,730
272,061

10,000

582,251
10,000

170,800

28,000

102,390
85,472
24,000

2,269,917

3Q4,738

31,504

928,936
3,924

364,193

213,96s
3,565

47,065
31,972

1,002,209

101 ,940
40,509

280,999
8,979

840
1,373

88,730
269,347

5,600

576,524
9,926

1s5,036

27,090

102,262
70,563
22,366

640,527
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended May 31,2017

Original
Budget

Final

Budqet Actual

Variance
Positive

(Nesative)

(Continued)

EXPENDITURES

General Government Support (continued)

lnsurance charges
MTA payroll tax
Contingency 686 957

3,681,074
75,000

979 451

12,271,435

3,68 t,074
75,000

3,681,074
71,387

-0-

3,613
686,957

12,347,884 9,123,293 3,224 ,591

Public Safety
Police Depaftment:

Personal services
Equipment
Other expenditures

Fire Department:
Personal services
Equipment
Other expenditures

Safety lnspection:
Personal services
Equipment
Other expenditures

Transportation
Street Administration

Personal services
Other expenditures

Street Maintenance:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Snow Removal:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Street Lighting:
Personal services
Equipment
Other expenditures

Total Public Safety 14,152,154 14,919,828 14,300,154

Total General

Government Support

Total Economic
Assistance and Opportunity

9,550,275
8,000

486,613

1,743,474
79,204

1,449,853

643,277
16,500

174,9s8

10,016,575
8,000

493,306

2,018,155
112,304

1,416,753

9,886,693
5,542

345,745

1,945,640
61,734

1,270,929

129,882
2,458

147,561

72,515
50,570

145,824

607,177
16,500

231,058

591,046
3,820

189,005

16,131
12,680

42,053

619,674

247,503
46,435

701,567
213,000

300,654
211,644

187,667
8,000

528,950

299,760
33,935

698,807
259,000

275,897
166,231

187,667

8,000
648,950

296,487
29,841

650,043
255,500

275,162
164,697

167,162

498,'149

3,273
4,094

48,764
3,500

735
1,534

20,505
8,000

150,801

Total Transportation 2,445,420

39,000

2,578,247 2,337,041 241 206

Economic Assistance and Opportunity
Publicity:

Other expenditures 39,000 32,443 6,557

39,000 6,557
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended May 31,2017

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

(Continued)

EXPENDITURES

Gulture and Recreation
Parks:

Personal services
Equipment
Other expenditures

Playgrounds and
Recreation Centers:
Personal services
Equipment
Other expenditures

Concerts:
Other expenditures

Historian:
Other expenditures

Home and Community Services
Sanitary Sewers:

Personal services
Equipment
Other expenditures

Storm Sewers:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Refuse and Garbage:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Street Cleaning:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Other Sanitation:
Personal services
Other expenditures

Total Culture and Recreation 4,721,387 4,744,229 4,259,735

1,431,735
7,290

527,321

1,793,171
10,350

924,520

25,500

1,500

1,365,540
7,290

597,065

1,830,964
10,350

906,020

25,500

1,500

1,258,902
4,785

559,257

1,659,1 19

9,070
760,336

6,766

1,500

106,638

2,505
37,808

171,845
1,280

145,684

18,734

-0-

484,494

233,323
36,000

1 20,1 50

104,6't2
33,860

1 ,812,803
1,566,013

474,686
95,151

250,494

244,423
43,245

106,805

104,612
41,960

1 ,830,1 29
'l ,553,513

482,415
95,1 51

240,677

84,711

103,072
38,671

1,795,712
1,458,375

468,548
87,216

3,746
43,245
22,094

1,540

3,289

34,417
95,138

13,867
7,935

26 921
251,494

31,921
247,738

29,936
3,756
1,985

Total Home and
Community Services 4,754,013 4,785,668 4,554,656 231,012

(Continued)
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended May 31,2017

Original
Budqet

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Neoative

(Continued)

EXPENDITURES

Employee Benefits
State retirement
Police and fire retirement
Social security
U nemployment insurance
Hospital and medical insurance

Debt Service
Principal
lnterest

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Premium on bonds
Transfers in
Transfers out

1,766,762
2,517,506
1,620,000

10,000
6,479,636

1,766,762
2,517,506
1,548,081

10,000

6,551,555

1,552,067
2,349,748
1,459,746

4,829
6,545,226

214,695
167,758
88,335

5,171
6,329

Total Employee Benefits 12.393,904 12,393,904 1 1,91 1 ,616 482,288

1,655,469
500,096

1,525,469
500,096

1,480,253 45,216
152,794347 302

Total Debt Service 2,'t55,565 2,025,565 1,827,555

48,346,493

198 010

Total Expenditures 52,932,878 53,834,325 5,487,832

3,739,356 2,888,877

64,620

9,830,581 6,941,704

(5,620,508)

258,870
276,174

(8,439,58e)

194,2s0
276,174

-0-(8,439 ,58e)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance*

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

(5,620,508) (8,374,969) (7,e04,545) 470,424

$ (1 ,881 ,152) $ (S,¿86,OSZ)

$ 17,393,674

* The net change in fund balance for the original and final budget was included in the budget as an appropriation (i.e. spend down)
of fund balance.

1,926,036 Å___ t A12,128

15,467,638
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

FOR OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFTTS (OPEB)
May 31 ,2017

Actuarial
Valuation Date Actuarial Value

of Assets

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

$ 104,972,108

$ 101,205,324

$ 95,543,983

$ 92,989,078

Unfunded
LiabilityJune 1, Funded Ratio Covered Payroll

$ 20,189,794

$ 23,972,996

$ 24,690,996

$ 24,991,040

Unfunded
Liability as a

Percentage of
Covered Payroll

519.93%

422.16%

386.96%

372.090/"

2016

2014

2012

201 0

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

$

$

$

$

$ 104,972,108

$ 101,205,324

$ 95,543,983

$ 92,989,078

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

May 31 ,2017

2017 201 6 2015

NYSERS

Village's proportion of the collective net pension liabil¡ty

Village's proportionate share of the net collective pension liability

Village's covered-employee payroll

Village's proport¡onate share of the net collective pension liability as

a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net posltion as a percentage of the total pension

liability coming from plan

NYSPFRS

Village's proportion of the collective net

pension liability

Village's proportionate share of the net

collective pension liability

Village's covered-employee payroll

Village's proportionate share of the net

collective pension liability as

a percentage of its covered-

employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension

liability coming from plan. -

8,897,521 $ 1,911,344

13,341,738 $ 13,844,965

35.97o/" 66.69% 13.81"/"

94.7oyo 90.68"/" 97.95y.

2017 2016 201 5

0.2'164597% 0.23465790/o 0.2310009%

$ 4,486,457 $ 6,947,722 $ 635,852

$11,195,926 $ 10,120,871 $ 10,032,068

40.07"/o 68.650lo 634%

93.46/" 90.240/" 99.03o/"

0.05247750/o

$ 4,930,894 $

$ 13,708,672 $

0.0554353% 0.0565780%

Notes:

Amounts presented above were determined as of the System's measurement date of March 31st.

There were no signif¡cant changes in benefits for the years presented above.

Changes in assumptions were as follows:

a) Ïhe interest (discount) rate was lowered lrom 7 .5"/o lo 7 .0V" in the actuarial valual¡on used in the System's March 31 , 2016
financial statements.

b) The inflation rate was lowered lrom 2.7"/o lo 2.5o/" in the actuarial valuation used in the System's March 31 , 201 6 f¡nancial statements
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

May 31 ,2017

NYSERS

For the Years Ended May 31,

2017

Contractually required contribution $ 2,053,554

2016 2015 2014

$ 2,463,6't8 $ 2,736,701 $ 2,940224

2012 201 1 2010 2009 2008

$ 930,736 ç 1,227,727 $ 1,253,033g 2,275,745 $ 1,793,315

$ 2,275,745 $ 1,793,315 $ 930,736 $ 1,227,727 $ 1,253,033

$ -0- $ -0- $ -o- $ -0- $ -0-

2013

$ 2,695,215

V¡llage's covered-employee payroll $13,563,955 $13,124,194 $13,832,182 $13,927,676

Contribulions in relation to the
contraclually requ¡red contribution

Contribution def¡ciency (excess)

Contributions as a percenlage of covered-
employee payroll

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contr¡bution

Contribulions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll

$ 2,053,554 $ 2,463,618

$ -0- $ -0-

$ 2,736,701

$ -o-

s 2,940,224

$ -0-

s 2,695,215

s -0-

s 1 4,367,336 N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A15.14ïo

2017

21.52o/o

18.770/"

201 6

30.620/"

19.79ô/"

2015

25.990/"

2010

21 .110/o 18.7604

NYSPFRS
For the Years Ended May 31,

2014 201 3

26.780/" 23.1570

2î12 2ñ11

$ 2,197,288 $ 1,761,929

2009 2008

Contractually required contribution $ 2,349,748 $ 3,312,410 $ 2,627,421 $ 3,006,540 $ 2,639,070 $ 1,134,728 $ 1,408,229 $ 1,409,933

$2,349,748 $3,312,410 $2,627,421 $3,006,540 $2,639,070 $2,1s7,288 $1,761,929 51,1s4/28 $1,408,229 $1,409,933

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-

Village's covered-employee payroll $10,921,231 $10,816,474. $10,109,876 . $11,226,524 " $11,399,194 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/AN/AN/AN/A N/A

N/A Covered- employee payroll for years ended May 2012 through May 2OO8 was not available.

- lnformation was rev¡sed lo conform with current year presentation.
Notes:

There was a change ¡n assumption for the pens¡oner mortality improvement in the April 1 , 2014 actuarial valuation from the society of Actuaries scale AA to scale Mp-201 4.
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